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PETITION.

To His Excellency, Hon. Iexacro Mariscar,
Secretary of Foreign Relations, United States of Mexico,

City of Mexico, Federal District, Republiec of Mexico.

YoUR PETITIONERS, whose names are subscribed hereto and who
are each and all citizens of the Republic of Mexico entitled to the
whole or as tenants in common to a certain portion of the lands here-
inafter mentioned, wrongfully withheld from them as hereinafter
mentioned, beg leave to present to your Excellency this petition and
statement of their grievances in the premises, and thereby to apply to
your Excellency for relief on the ground that upon the facts as herein-
after stated your petitioners will be remediless in the premises except
by and through the good offices of your Excellency, and in that behalf
vour petitioners set forth the facts and cirecumstances in connection
with their rights and wrongs and the remedy proposed for the same
as follows:

THE GRIEVANCES OF YOUR PETITIONERS.

1. Your petitioners allege that they and each of them and their
ancestors and predecessors in title are being and for years have been
wrongfully disseized and deprived of their right and title derived by
and through the sovereignty of the Mexican Government in and to cer-
tain lands, tenements and hereditaments originally lying on the south
side of the Rio Grande River and within the boundaries and jurisdie-
tion of the Mexican Government at the time of the promulgation of
the treaty between the Republic of Mexico and the United States of
America, commonly known as the treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo, con-
cluded February 2, 1848, and conserved to the Government and people
of Mexico by the subsequent treaties and conventions between the
two governments and especially the treaty concluded at Washington,
November 12, 1884.
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2. That said lands to which your petitioners have title are cer-
tain Jands formerly lyving on the south bank of the Rio Grande River
at the time of the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo, but now lying on the
northern side of the present channel of the Rio Grande, and com-
monly known as the Distriet of E1 Chamizal, and a portion of which
lands were in controversy in a case formerly pending before the In-
ternational (Water) Boundary Commission of the United States of
America and the Republic of Mexico under the title of case No. 4
known as “El Chamizal” and hereinafter referred to.

3. That your petitioners each and all of them have some right,
title or interest to the whole or some portion of said lands either indi-
vidually in fee or as tenant in common or as joint tenants or otherwise
in said property the amounts and deseriptions of which interests your
petitioners stand ready to prove at the proper time and place by record
and other evidence to be produced.

DESCRIPTION OF THE LAXNDS.

4. That the description of the whole district in and to which
your petitioners have title in manner and form as aforesaid is as
follows:

Beginning at a point above and near the City of El Paso, Texas,
where the present channel of the Rio Grande is intersected by the old,
abandoned channe] of said river, that is to say, the channel of said
river as same existed in 1848 at the time of the Treaty of Guadalupe
Hidalgo, and for many years subsequent thereto; thence following
said old channel, as the same was surveved in the years 1852-3 by
Messrs. W. H. Emory and Jose Salazar, to where said old channel
again intersects and connects with the present channel of said river,
immediately below and near the said City of El Paso, Texas, and
thence up said present channel to the place of beginning.

5. Your petitioners further allege that they are prepared to
sustain and prove their title to the said lands in controversy by the
record evidences of the Mexican title to the same, extending from the
grants or patents from the Government to their ancestors and prede-
cessors in title down to the claimants, making thereby a complete
record title to the lands and premises in question.
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THE REASON OF THE DISPUTED TITLE.

6. And your petitioners further allege that the only reason why
there is any dispute or controversy in relation to said matters arises
from the fact that while the deeds and records in your petitioners’
Mexican chain of title and the surveys plotted upon the ground, show
conclusively that your petitioners are entitled to the said lands in the
Chamizal District, there has been and is set up a claim of title by cer-
tain American citizens and corporations in and to the same arising out
of the claim on their part that the Mexican right, title and interest of
your petitioners and their ancestors and predecessors in title as Mex-
ican citizens in and to said lands has been annulled and defeated by
a change in the channel of the Rio Grande, whereby the right and title
of your petitioners and their ancestors and predecessors in title to said
lands has been annulled and said \merican title has been created
through changes occurring in such channel since the date of said
Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo.

THE DISPUTE IMPORTANT AXD DANGEROUS TO
THE PEACE OF THE TWO XNATIOXNS.

7. Your petitioners further allege that said controversy between
the Mexican chain of title and this alleged claim of a new American
title arising out of a change in the bed of the river on the part of cer-
tain American citizens claiming said property, has been of long stand-
ing and has been a constant source of friction and conflict between
your petitioners, their ancestors and predecessors in title, and said
American citizens, and on occasion has led to force and arms and
bloodshed and seriously endangers the peaceful velations between the
two countries, so much so that the said controversy was in some of
its aspects a portion of the boundary dispute between the two countries
which was brought before the said International (Water) Boundary
Commission of the United States and Mexico under the title of case
No. 4 known as “El Chamizal” as aforesaid, and as to which the
American and Mexican Commissioners were unable to agree after a
very lengthy and prolonged series of sessions in relation to said dis-
pute and in this connection your petitioners call attention to the letter
from the Hon. Anson Mills, American Commissioner on said Inter-
national (Water) Boundary Commission dated December 4, 1897,
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to the Honorable Secretary of State of the United States of America,
calling attention to said case No. 4, known as “El Chamizal,” and
stating that:

“As stated in my letter transmitting this case, August 4, 1896,
on page 3, 1t is perhaps the most important case submitted for our con-
sideration and presented great provocation to the ciizens of both
countries for violence and disorder, where so many small tracts of land
are claimed by citizens of both nations.” '

THE NATURE OF THE ISSUES.

8. Your petitioners further allege that the issues in the contro-
versy between the Mexican titles to said lands in which your peti-
tioners are interested and the alleged American title to the same rests
upon the following points, viz:

First. The exact plotting upon the land itself of the channel of
the Rio Grande as it existed at the time of the Treaty of Guadalupe
Hidalgo in 1848.

Second. It is conceded on both sides that the channel of said
river has since changed to the southward, placing upon the American
shore a considerable quantity of land known as the Chamizal District
which heretofore, and at the time of the treaty, was on the Mexican
side of the river and the only dispute between the two governments as
represented by their respective Commissioners in said International
(Water) Boundary Commission in regard to said K1 Chamizal case
No. 4 was the question of whether the said change of channel had
been the result of “the slow and gradual erosion and the deposit of
alluvium” resulting in an exchange of title to said.lands from the
Mexican to the American side under Article I. of the Treaty of
November 12, 1884, or had been “any other change,” ete., under
Article IL. of said treaty. In that connection your petitioners call
attention to the statement of the American Commissioner on said
International (Water) Boundary Commission contained in the Joint
Journal of November 6, 1895, and set forth on page 45 of Volume I.
of the Proceedings of said International (Water) Boundary Com-
mission as published by the Department of State of the United States
of America, where he states:

“The sole question before the Joint Commission, as he under-
stands it, is the location of the boundary line and the national juris-
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diction over the lands adjacent, and not one of personal title to any
lands, and to simplify the case and avoid multiplicity of papers in the
record and hasten an early conclusion, he is ready and willing to
admit on the part of his Government, that at the time of the establish-
ment of the boundary between the two governments in 1853, by the
Commissioners Emory and Salazar, as provided in the Treaty of
Guadalupe Hidalgo, the tract of land then known as “El Chamizal”
was wholly within the territory and jurisdiction of Mexico; and that
subsequently a portion of that tract has been passed by the action of
the Rio Grande to the United States side of the river, and he admits
that, having admitted this, the whole question before the Commission
is whether or not the river in its passage moved over the land by grad-
ual erosion from the Mexican bank and deposit on the United States
bank, as described in Article L. of the Treaty of 1884, or by a sudden
avulsion, by cutting a new bed or deepening another channel than that
which marked the boundary.

“In the former case, the present channel of the river to be the
boundary, or in the latter, the boundary to be established in the old
channel though it be dry.”

THE TREATY PROVISIONS.

9. Your petitioners further allege that the following extracts
from the treaties between the two countries sufticiently set forth the
agreements between the two governments in so far as they apply to the
boundary of the land in question, viz:

EXTRACT FROM THE TREATY OF GUADALUPE HIDALGO, FEBRUARY
2, 1842.

“Article V. The boundary line between the two republics shall
commence in the Gulf of Mexico, three leagues from land, opposite
the mouth of the Rio Grande, otherwise called Rio Bravo del Norte,
or opposite the mouth of its deepest branch, if it should have more
than one branch emptying directly into the sea; from thence up the
middle of that river, following the deepest channel, where it has more
than one to the point where it strikes the southern boundary of New
Mexico; thence, westwardly along the whole southern boundary of
New Mexico (which runs north of the town called Paso) to its west-
ern termination.”
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EXTRACT FROM THE TREATY CONCLUDED AT WASHINGTON, NOVEMBER
12, 1884.

“Article I.  The dividing line shall forever be that described in
the aforesaid treaty and follow the center of the normal channel of the
rivers named, notwithstanding any alterations in the banks or in the
course of those rivers, provided that such alterations be effected by
ratural canses through the slow and gradual erosion and deposit of
alluvium and not by the abandonment of an existing river bed and the
opening of a new one.

“Article II. Any other change, wrought by the force of the
current, whether by the cutting of a new bed, or where there is mors
than one channel by the deepening of another channel than that swhich
marked the boundary at the time of the survey made under the afore-
said treaty, shall produce no change in the dividing line as fixed by the
surveys of the International Boundary Commissions in 1852 ; but the
line then fixed shall continue to follow the middle of the original
channel bed, even should this become wholly dry or be obstructed by
deposits.

“Article ITI.  No artificial change in the navigable course of the
river, by building jetties, piers, or obstructions which may tend to
deflect the current or produce deposits of alluvium, or by dredging to
deepen another then the original channel under the treaty when there
is more than one channel, or by cutting waterways to shorten the
ravigable distance shall be permitted to affect or alter the dividing
line as determined by the aforesaid commissions in 1852 or as deter-
mined by Article I. hereof and under the reservation therein con-
tained ; but the protection of the bank on either side from erosion by
revetinents of stone or other material not unduly projecting into the
current of the river shall not be deemed an artificial change. * * *

“Article V. Rights of property in respect of lands which may
have become separated through the creation of new channels as de-
fined in Article IT. hereof, shall not be affected thereby, but such lands
shall continue to be under the jurisdiction of the country to which they
previously belonged.”

THE BOUNDARY BETWEEN THE TITLES OF SAID
LANDS IN 1848,

10. Your petitioners further allege that, at the time of the
Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo which thus established as the houndary
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line between the Mexican and United States governuients the then
existing channel of the Rio Grande River as it existed in 1848, said
channel at that time also constituted the dividing line between a cer-
tain grant of two caballerias or about two hundred acres of land lving
on the northern side of said river originally granted by the State of
Chihuahua to Don Juan Maria Ponce de Leon in the year 1827, and
the lands of your petitioners lying in the distriet of E1 Chamizal on
the Mexican side of the said river.

THIE PONCE DE LEON GRANT BECAME AN AMER-
ICAN TITLE BY THE TREATY.

11.  Your petitioners further allege that thereafter and in the
vear 1858 the records show that said Don Juan Maria Ponce de Leon
applied to and obtained from the State of Texas a confirmation of his
title to the said two caballerias or two hundred acres, the sovereignty
over said property having, by the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo,
passed into the United States of America and the State of Texas.

THE SUBSEQUEXNT CHANGES IN THE CHANNEL OF
THE RIVER.

12.  Your petitioners further allege that subsequently and after
the Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo aforesaid, said River Rio Grande or
Bravo in and about the vears 1862 and 1865 in time of great floods
and by reason of the violence of itz currents at such times abandoned
the channel in which it ran in 1848 and subsequent years, and made
for itself by avulsion new channels, in one of which said river now
runs and which said new channel invaded and does invade the lands
of your petitioners above described and caused the same to be thrown
or left on the northern side of said river, but your petitioners allege
and aver that such alteration in the center of the normal channel of
said river was not effected by natural eauses working through “the
slow and gradual erosion and deposit of alluvium,” but was caused
by “other changes wrought by the force of the current in cutting a new
bed, or when there was more than one channel, the deepening of
another channel” than that which marked the boundary line at the
time of the survey made under the said Treaty of Guadalupe Hidalgo:
and that by reason of said change being made in the manner and
form aforesaid, the title to said lands remained in your petitioners,
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their ancestors and predecessors in title and the sovereignty remained
in the Government of Mexico and by reason of the provisions of said
treaties affecting changes in the channel so occurring said lands. never
became subject to or under the jurisdiction or sovereignty of the
United States of America or the State of Texas.

THE DEFECTS ON THE FACE OF THE AMERICAN
TITLE.

13.  Your petitioners further aver as showing the tortious and
well-known illegal character of the \merican title claimed in and to
the said lands, that it was not until the year 1887—twenty-five and
twenty-two years respectively after the actual changes in said river
oceurred placing the said Mexican territory by avulsion on the north-
ern bank of the Rio Grande River—that any record claim of title was
made under the American sovereignty to said lands so changed from
one side of the river to the other, but in that vear, as vour petitioners
are informed, the Campbell Real Estate Company, a Texas corpora-
tion applied for and obtained from the State of Texas on behalf of
Ponce de Leon and in alleged turther confirmation of the former con-
firmation from the State of Texas to Ponce de Leon hereinabove men-
tioned ( Ponce de Leon having died years previous to such application
of 1887 and his heirs having, many vears prior thereto, sold and con-
veyed the orginal two caballerias of land) a certain patent in the name
of the State of Texas quitelaiming to Jnan Maria Ponce de Leon,
his heirs and assigns fovever 3,597,005 square varas of land, or abont
six hundred acres.  That in said patent it is falsely recited that the
same is the same land to which said Ponce de Leon was entitled by
virtue of an act of the Legislature of the State of Texas relinquishing
all her right and interest in EI Rancho del Ponce, known as the town
of Franklin, approved Febrnary 11, 1858, for the said patent contains
a further description calling for six hundred acres of land when the
former quitelaim from the State of Texas of 1838 was to a tract of
land called “El Rancho de Ponce,” being the original grant to Juan

Maria Ponce de Leon of two caballerias containing about two hundred
acres of land, and said letters patent, bearing date May 4, 1887, con-
tained the following exception or reservation as to the validity of said
title: ;

“This letter patent shall not be so construed as to prejudice the
rights of adverse claimants prior to February 11, 1858.”
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14. Your petitioners further allege that the American claim-
ants to the said lands were and are compelled by the exigency of the
case to claim title under the State of Texas, which by reason of said
avulsion came into the apparent possession of said lands, and only
acquired an alleged paper title thereto under the facts and circum-
stances atoresaid, when the State of Texas in relinquishing its rights
expressly preserved and protected the rights of your petitioners, their
ancestors and predecessors in title by the insertion of said clause in
said quitelaim from said State. Your petitioners further allege
that the insertion in such patent under which the American claimants
claim title of said clause is in itself an implied admission of the out-
standing titles of your petitioners, their ancestors and predecessors
in title, and the holding of the \merican claimants thereunder even in
a court of law, where a statute of limitations might be urged as a de-
fense, could not be construed as an adverse holding so as to set run-
ning any munieipal statute of limitations, and in the forum of inter-
national arbitration where no such defense is permissible such a clause
in the opposing title prevents even the objection of staleness in the
adverse claim.

THE LINE CANNOT BE LOCATED DEFINITELY FROM
THE MAP AGREED OXN.

15, Your petitioners further allege that the exact location of the
river channel or bed of the Rio Grande opposite the City of El Paso,
as ascertained by the survey made under the Treaty of Guadalupe
Hidalgo, cannot at the present time be definitely ascertained or plotted
upon the ground within a space of half a wmile by reason of the fact
that the only map in existence establishing the line of said survey and
the channel of said river is the map of Emory and Salazar bearing
date 1852, and made on a seale of 1,/60,000, and being for the purpose
of plotting said lands in dispute in this controversy u scale so small
that the said line canuot be Tun with any certainty upon the ground
within the limits mentioned, and that in consequence said line can
only be correetly established with reference to said map by asecrtain-
ing the same from the records of the ancient deeds to lands in saii
district of “El Chamizal in said disputed territory now claimed to be
in the State of Texas and the United States of America bounding on
and near said river and running from 1827 to within the last rwenty
vears or so, and also the testimony of witnesses as to the changes oc-
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curring in the bed and channels of said river from 1848 to date, and
your petitioners respectfully submit that the map provisionally agreed
upon in said Chamizal case No. 4 by the American and Mexican Com-
missioners in the International (Water) Boundary Corumission be-
tween Mexico and the United States of America herein mentioned
and published on pages 96 and 97, Volume 1., of the Proceedings of
said Commission, was a map inadvertently agreed upon by the Mex-
ican Commissioner because of his attention not being drawn to the
impossibility of correctly plotting the same from the ancient map
aforesaid and the further fact that his attention was not drawn to the
ancient deeds and evidence now in the possession of and to be pro-
duced by your petitioners establishing the course and channel of said
river at points different from those laid down in said new map said
to be a proper plotting on a large scale of the said ancient map made
on said small scale, and in this connection vour petitioners beg leave
to call your attention to correspondence had between an agent of your
petitioners, Mr. Brewster Cameron and Professor Lewis M. ITaupt, a
graduate of West Point Military Academy, late professor of civil en-
gineering in the University of Pennsvlvania, and recentlv a member
of the Isthmian Canal Commission of the United States of Ameriea,
in which the absolute nnreliability of a map on the scale of the Emory
and Salazar map as the foundation of an exaet plotting of title to the
lands in question is conclusively shown by the opinion of a most
eminent and respected civil engineer, and the said correspondence, con-
sisting of the letter of inquiry of Mr. Brewster Cameron and the
answer thereto of Professor Lewis M. Haupt is annexed hereto and
marked “Exhibit A” and prayed to be made and taken as a part hereof
with the same force and effect as if herein recited at length.

NEW CORRECT SURVEY AXD JMAP.

16.  And your petitioners further submit herewith and pray the
same to be made and taken as a part of this petition, a map hereto at-
tached and marked ‘“Exhibit F,” certified to be made by the official
surveyor of the City of Juarez from the calls and monuments de-
seribed in said ancient Mexican deeds referred to, whereby there is
plotted upon said ground pursnant to said survey both the present map
of the streets, blocks and avenues of the City of El Paso, north of the
channel of the river of 1852, and also the respective channels of the
River Rio Grande or beds of the same as the same existed in the year
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1852 and as the same were changed by the floods of 1862 and 1865

as heretoforc alleged and can be proved by said ancient records and the
testimony of witnesses as herein alleged. s

17, And your petitioners further aver and stand ready to pro-
duce at the proper time and place the proper records or certified copies
of same from which said map was made, together with the testimony
of said surveyor as to his plotting the same upon the land in connection
with the said map as aforesaid, the same being too voluminous to be
set forth in this petition, and also to produce witnesses who can testify
in relation to the said changes by avulsion occurring in the channels
and beds of the Rio Grande at the years mentioned, and also submit
in connection therewith certain testimony already taken in a certain
snit in the United States Circuit Court in and for the District of
Texas, entitled W. J. Warder, plaintiff, v. Mrs. Laura Loomis et a..,
defendants, which said testimony is contained on pages 27 to 16, in-
clusive, of the transeript of record of said case in the Supreme Court
of the United States for the October term, 1904, No. 201, and a copy
of which is hereto annexed and marked “Exhibit C,” and made and
prayed to be taken as a part hereof, many of said witnesses having
since that time become deceased and their testimony being thus per-
petuated for the purposes of thiz petition.

PETITIONERS HAVE EXHAUSTED ALL LEGAL REME-
DIES IN MEXICO AND THE UNITED STATES
AXND BEFORE THE INTERNATIONAL
BOUNDARY COMMISSION.

18.  Your petitioners further allege that by reason of the facts
hereinafter stated they have not been able to present the evidence,
facts and arguments on which they relied to support their claims either
before the International (Water) Boundary Commission above
mentioned or in the courts of the United States or in the courts of
Mexico, and by each and all of said tribunals have been denied a hear-
ing on the merits of the case, leaving them in the position of being
remediless in the premises except by and through the good offices of the
Government of the Republic of Mexico.
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THE PROCEEDINGS IN NO. 4 THE ~EL CHAMIZAL” CASE
BEFORE THE INTERNATIONAL (WATER)
BOUNDARY COMMISSION.

19, Your petitioners turther show that on or about January
23, 1894, Pedro Ygnacio Garela, a resident of the City of Paso del
Norte, now known as Juarez, presented to the Jefe Politico at the City
of Juarez the following petition:

Crrizex Jere Porrrico (Mayor) :

Pedro Ygnacio Gareia, of legal age, a farmer and resident citizen
ot this city, respectiully presents himself to your honor, and, begging
leave of the court, says:

That, in the vear 1518 the then Licutenant of Cavalry and
Political Governor of Paso del Norte, granted and conveyed to Senor
Ricardo Brusuelas, twenty thousand square varas (20,000 vs. sq.) of
land, more or less, said land Iying and being situated at a certain point
that was at that time on this side of the Rio Bravo.  That said Senor
Brusuelas in conjunction and acting with Don. Felix Miranda, Mrs.
Ursula Miranda and Jose Antonio \Apodaca did sell, grant and convey
to my grandfather, Senor Don Lorenzo del Barrio, in the vear 1527,
a certain piece, tract or parcel of land kuown by Ikl Chamizal,” a
louse having already been built on said property.  That my aforesaid
grandtather was in public and peaceable possession of the aforesaid
real estate without any interruption whatever from the time that he
bought the place np to the time of his death, which event took place in
the yvear 1865. That on the following year, viz., in 1866, October
15th, his son awd exeentor of the estate. Mr. Autonio del Barrio.
granted, deeded and conveyed to me the aforesaid property, the same
being from that thme on in my possession, through my levally au-
thorized agent, Mr. Jose Acosta up to the year 1573, in which vear, in
consequence of the abrupt and sudden change of the current of the
aforesaid Rio Bravo, that land in question was by that fact left ou
the other side of said river, or on the side of what is called to-day
Il Paso, Texas. Ever since this change took place I have not dared
to occupy my aforesaid land, fearful, as I was, among other things,
that sowe personal injury wight befall me from the part of a few
North Americans, who, supposing this land to belong to the United
States of North Ameriea, pretended to come into the possession of the

same, and alzo becauze T was not satisfied in miv own mind which of
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the two governments I ought to recognize as having jurisdiction over
the sawme, in regard to the collection of taxes.

The facts to sustain my claim aforesaid are contained in the
documents herein inclosed, comprising twenty-three legal pages; and
in order to ascertain the facts relating to the sudden change of the
course of the river and the identification of the land in question, I
beg that you have the testimony of the witnesses mentioned in the ae-
companying interrogatories taken, all of whoiw are residents of this
city, so that each in his turn be examined, and when this be done you
will please forward all the documents in the case, viz.: the petition,
the papers herein transmitted, and the interrogatories and answers,
to the International Boundary Commission. according to Article VIIT.
of the convention between Mexico and the United States, nera on the
first day of Mareh, 1889, so that said Commission may decide in won-
formity with the stipulations in clauses IT. and TTL. of the Convention
of 1884, to which of the two nations belongs the land in question. and
whether ov not I have any right to the aforesaid land.

It is justice that I demand.

Peoro Y. Garera.

City of Juarez, Mexico, 23d January, 1894,

Therenpon the following proceedings were Lad:

Distrier or Bravos,
Mavor's Ofhice (Jefatura Polirica), No. 371.

The Judge of Letters of this Distriet having earried out the attes-
tations asked for by Citizen Pedvo Y. Gaveia in his petition, dated
January 23d last, this office ordered as follows:

“February 19, 1894

“That the interested party be informed of the receipt of his peti-
tion of January 23d last, that the said petition, together with the doc-
uments accompanying same, and the investigation held in regard to it
be transmitted to the International Boundary Commission for such
action as may be proper.”

I have the honor to insert the above for such action as your Hon-
orable Commission may deem proper. inclosing hevewith the petition
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In fifteen pages, the documents in originals, and uncertified copy of
same and the attestation above mentioned.
JEsTs O. NAJERA.

Liberty and Constitution, Cindad Juarez, February 26, 1894.
To the Chief of the Mexican Commission of the International Bound-
ary Commission. (Present.)

DepPARTMENT oF StaTk oF Forriey RELaTioxns,
Section for America, Asia and Oceanica,
Special Sub-Section for Boundaries,

Mexico, October 29th, 1394.

On the 4th of September last, the Fiscal Attoruey of the Distries
Court of Paso del Norte, Chihuahua, instituted two investigations
with the view of ascertaining the changes that had occurred in the
current of the Rio Bravo from a point where the river reaches the last
international post that marked the boundary between Mexico and the
United States of America, to a point two leagnes to the east of said
city, and from the 2d February, 1845, up to the day when said inves-
tigations were begun.

The proceedings held for that purpose were three in number, and
are sent you herewith in folios 22, 12 and 104, in conformity with the
prescriptions of Articles L. and IV. of the Convention of March 1st,
1889, to the eud that you proceed, together with the Commissioner of
the United States of America, agreeably with said Article I\, to the
place where the changes occurred, and institute such proceedings as be
proper in order to be able to determine and arrive at a decision as
called for by the treaty.

MariscarL,

To the Commissioner of Mexico, of the International Commission of
3
Boundaries, with the United States of America, Reynosa,
Tamaulipas.

(One package sent under separate cover.)

The presentment of the foregoing petition of Pedro Y. Gareia
gave rise to what is now known in the report of proceedings of the
International Boundary Commission as case No. 4, known as “El
Chamizal.”
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At the time of the presentment of said petition and during the
Learing of testimony before the Boundary Commission, an American
lawyer, Mr. T. W. Dougherty, appeared before said Commission, in
behalf of one or move of these petitioners, and presented to it, as shown
on page 68, Volume 1., of its report, the following communication.

To taHE INTERNATIONAL BOUNDARY COMMISSION OF TIl UNITED
StarTes oF AMERICA AxXD THE UNITED STATES OF MEXICO,
Now 1x Sesstoy ¥ THE Crry oF Ex Paso, Texas:

The claimants of land between the Rio Grande River, as it ran at

the time of the treaty between the two countries in 1552 and 1853,
and where the said river now runs, through the undersigned, their at-
torney, respectfully ask that before the boundary line is agreed upon,
that you have brought before you and take the testimony of the follow-
ing witnesses, to wit: Price Cooper, Sam. Bean and John Clark, all
American citizens. I hereto attach aflidavit of Price Cooper, and am
informed that the other witnesses will testify to the same facts; also
Dr. Samaniego, who is ex-Governor of Chihunahua and ex-Mayvor of
Juarez. Quirino Lara (whose statement is heveto attached) and Dr.
Samaniego, Juarez, Mexico, has examined the same and states it is
true. IFrancizeo Varcla, El Paso, Texas, Jesus Tellis, Marcello Armijo,
Francizsco Provencio. Jose M. Sierra, Guegorio Herrera. Dolores
Bernal, all of which rexide in Juarez, Mexico. 1. e., also Royv Bean,
who resides in Langtry, Texas, T. T. Teel, Sam Wade, who live in Ei
Pazo, Texas, all of which will testify that the Rio Grande River ran
where Price Cooper testifies in his atfidavit it ran in 1552 and 1855,
Price Cooper lives at Ysleta, Texas: Sam Bean, Los Cruces, N. AL :
also George Baylor lives at Ysleta, Texas; John Clark, San Elizario,
Texas.  We ask that these witnesses be interrogated in regard to
where the river ran in 1852 and 1853 and when it changed, and how
it came to change its channel. Also ask that I be permitted to be
present when said witnesses are examined and permitted to ask ques-
tions in regard to where the river ran in 1852 and 1853, and such
other questions as mav be important in proving where the line or river
was in 1832 or 1853. And that you require said witnesses to go on
the ground and show where the river ran in 1852 and 1853, and in

duty bound will ever prax, ete.,

T. W. DovcuEerty,
Attorney for Claimants.




With which petition of \ttorney Dougherty was also presented
the affidavit of Price Cooper, an American citizen, as follows:

Tue StatE OF Texas, |

Couxrty or EL Paso. 3

I, Price Cooper, do for the purpose of saving the trouble and
expense of refurning to El Paso, Texas, make the following statement
of facts, the same being my testimony to be used before the Inter-
national Boundary Commission of the United States of America and
the United States of Mexico. I came to El Paso, Texas, in 1842, and
have lived in El Paso and vieinity ever since. I saw the surveyors
surveying the line between the United States of \merica and the
United States of Mexico, between Juarez, Mexico, and El Paso, Texas.
I know where the Rio Grande River ran in 1853 ; a little north of
where the Santa Fe Railroad roundhouse now stands, from there in an
easterly direction to where Fivst Street in Il Paso, and from there it
ran under the opera house, and from there in an easterly direction to
some old trees between Oregon and Utal streets, and ran through the
Pomeroy transfer corral.  Thence under where the jail iz now, and
from there in a northeasterly direction and north of where the Texas
and Pacific Railway depot is now. Thence crossing Overland and
San Antonio streets, and going in the direction of Concordia. It ran
there until in 1862, when it changed suddenly to near where the street-
car track turns on Seventhi Street. The change was caused by an
overflow in the river by the river leaving the old channel and forming
a new one. All the changes in the river have been made by sudden
changes in the river, abandoning the old channel and taking a new one.
I know that Captain French put in a dam to prevent the river from re-
turning to its old channel of 1533, This dam was built by Captain
French after the overflow in the river in 1862, when it changed from
the old channel and made a new one. Captain French was an Amer-
ican citizen, and was Town Marshal of the town of El Paso, Texas.

Price CoorEr.

Sworn to and subseribed before me this?
21st day of April. 1896. {
T. H. Coygrix,
Notary Publie,

El Paso County, Texas.
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Also a statement in writing by Quirino Lara, a Mexican citizen,
the correctness of which was vouched for by Doctor Mariano Sam-
aniego, of Juarez, and which statement was as follows:

Stare oF Texas, |
Cotrxty oF EL PASO,S

o

I, Quirino Lara, hereby declare and render my testimony, which
may be used before the Ionorable Boundary Comumission of the
United States of America and of the United States of Mexico, to wit:

L was born in the year 1540 at Paso del Norte, in the “Partido”
(Section) “Barrial,” where I lived up to the month of December,
1879, when I moved to the “Partido Chamizal” on the north side of
the river, after its change in 1562, where I have lived until this
present date.  About the yvear 1872 I was Governor of the Indian
“Pueblo” of El Paso.  .\bout the years 1546, at the time of the battle
of Temascalitos, and in 1853, one thousand eight hundred and fifty-
three, when the Awerican Flag was holsted at La Mesilla, T saw the
Rio Grande or Bravo running between PPaso del Norte, now Jnarez
City, and El Paso, Texas, at the point I will proceed to designate. Tt
ran where the water tank is now located, adjoining the roundhouse of
the Santa Fe Railroad: thence easterly over what is now called IMirst
Street, passing on the south of the City Hall and Opera House; and,
further on, where the house called “Cuco” is now situated: thence
westerly, where the county jail is now located; and eontinuing west-
wardly over the place now oceupied by Overland Street, a little above
the Texas and Pacific Station in the diveetion of Concordia.  Thus
did the river run up to the vear one thousand eight hundred and <ixty-
two (1862), in which vear it changed suddenly to the place where
there now lies the roadbed or railroad that passes by the little smelter;
and, when it reached the point where Campbell Street is now situated,
turned to the northeast in the divection of Fort Magofhin.

The viver did not change gradually by eating away the land, but
did so by cutting it off and forming a new channel. I worked on a
channel dug by Dr. Mariano Samaniego in the year 1369, with the
object of changing the river to its old place, but Captain French con-
structed a dam further up, which prevented the river from running
into the channel made by Dr. Samaniego.

QuiriNo Lara.
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Thereupon as appears tfrom the joint letter of the said Com-
missioners, dated El Pazo, Texas, May 13, 1896, to Messrs. T. W,
Doungherty and A. H. Kirby, occuring on page 69 of Volume 1. of the
Report of the Proceedings of the International (Water) Boundary
Cominission, the said Commissioners practically refused to hear any
of said testimony or documents relating to the changes in the river so
far as they wight affect the aceuracy of the present location of the
map made in 1896 by Messrs. Corella and Dabney, consulting engi-
neers fo the Commission and plotted from the map of Emory and

Salazar of 1852, and thereby foreclosing vour petitioners from estab-

lishing the facts above stated, nawmely. fivst, that the plotting of the
map of 1896 on the ground from the map of Emiovy and Salazar of
I

1852 could not be made with any aceuracy by reason of the small
scale of the map of 1852, and further from showing fromn calls in the
deeds and ancient records the actnal location of the river in the differ-
nt vears in connection with the ancient map of 1852 in order to ascer-
tain the line as therein established, and thereby the merits of the case
have never received proper hearine before said Commission.

In spite, however, of this ruling ont of a large portion of the
most valuable testimony that might have been produced before it. the
Boundary Commission thercafter proceeded to take the testimony of
fonr witnesses in hehalf of Mexico and three wimesses in behalf of the
United States of America, whose testimony is shown on pages 50 to
59 and on pages 64 to 67 of Volume I. of the Record of Proceedines of
the International (Water) Boundary Commission.

CHANGES IN RIVER CHAXXNEL OCCURRED ONLY IX
TIMES OF VIOLENT INUNDATIONS.

The testimony of each and ali of said witiesses, both for the
United States and for Mexieo, establishes the fact that no changes in
the Rio Grande ever occurred at anv other time than in time of
excessive and violent immdations and overflows, and that the changes
of the channel, from its location at the time of the survey made by
Messrs. Emory and Salazar, were but two (2 ), and each of which
occurred during time of overtlow, and that such changes in the channel
could not be seen or determined until the overflowed waters subsided
and settled into a fixed channel, when, bevond all possible question
(and the fact is admitted and impossible of contradiction) it wa:
readily zeen that the former “river bed’ had been “abandoned” and a




n-
A

he

new cne opened from a considerable distance south of the former
river beds as shown on said map presented herewith.
20.  Your petitioners further allege that the admission of the
American Commissioner, contained on page 45, Volume L., of the
Proceedings of the International (Water) Boundary Commission,
that, at the time of the establishment of the boundary in 1832, the
tract of land known as El Chamizal was well within the territory and
jurisdiction of Mexico, and that subsequently a portion of that tract
has been passed by the action of the Rio Grande to the United States
side of the river, leaves the burden of proof upon the United States to
prove, under the terms of the treaty, that such change occurred in such
wauner as to change the title to said lands from one govermmnent to the
other, for it 1z expresssly provided that “any other™ change except
that of “slow and pradual erosion™ shall not change the title ; nor shall
the title, or boundary, change in the event the river shall abandon an
existing bed and open a new chanuel; and once title is admitted to
have been in the Mexican Government it remains there until the other
party setting up title is able to prove by competent evidence that the
title was changed by the single natural cauze competent to affect such
change, namely “‘slow and gradual evosion.” In this connection your
petitioners annex hereto the admirable argument of the Ion. F.
Navier Osorno, the Mexican Commissioner on =aid International
(Water) Boundary Commission and contained at pages 81 to 86, in-
clusive, of Volnwe I.. of the record of their proceedings and the same
is hereto annexed and marked “Exhibit D’ and prayed to be made
and taken as a part hereof with the same force and effect as if herein
set forth at length.

21.  Your petitioners further allege that the American Comunis-
sioner was doubtless familiar with the changes that occurred in the
channel of the Rio Grande at El Paso, Texas, and Juarez, Mexico,
for the reason that in the year 1859 he occupied the position of Deputy
Surveyor, and in that year made, as he claims, a survey of the Juan
Maria Ponce de Leon two caballerias of land on the north side of the
river.  (See Vol. 1, pp. 62 and 63 of the Record of Proceedings of
the International (Water) Boundary Commission.) The American
Commissioner was doubtless familiar with the character of the changes
and how such changes were effected, when in what the \merican Com-
missioner, on page S8, Volume I., of the Report of Proceedings of the
Boundary Commission, ealls a special report to his own Government,

he savs:
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¥ % % that the 1,300 miles of the Rio Grande which consti-

A . ¢ . remeq
ture the international boundary from El Paso to the Gulf may he

meany
allege

, by ¥o
“The first from El Paso to Presidio del Norte, where, by reason petiti

divided into three characteristic divisions.”
He then characterizes the first division as follows:

of the greater fall in the river’s current and the firmer consistency of
the earth, the changes in the river’s channel are true avulsions and
clearly come within the avulsive changes described by Attorney-Gen- THTE]
eral Cushing in his opinion of November 11, 1856 ; that is to say,
by “deserting its original bed the river forms for itself a new channel
m another direction,” thus forming an Island, the length of which,
parallel to the river, is muny times its width, and often leaving many
inhabitants with cunltivated fields living on it, and ‘the nation from
whose territory the river thus breaks its way suffers injury by the loss
of territory greater than the benefit of vetaining the natural river
boundary.” ”’

This significant language, made at a time when the American
Commissioner did not probably recognize its significance. case No. 4
known as “El Chamizal™ at E1 Paso, Texas, not having arisen at that
time, the American Commissioner attemypts to explain away by stating
that he meant to say “that the arulsive changes in the ‘uppm’ section of
the river were frue avulsions.”

THE CONFLICTING TITLES I[AVE MENACED THE
PEACE OF THE TWO COUNTRIES.

22, Your petitioners further allege that at various times the
American claimants to said lands attempting to enforce their rights
have used force and arms in evieting and excluding therefrom the
Mexican claimants, and that the said American claimants being
backed by the court processes of the Texan Government while the
Mexican claimants have been without the backing of their own Gov-
ernment in the premises, great and manifest abuses and injustices
have been heaped upon Mexican citizens by American citizens with-
out any redress being possible or available to vour petitioners, and in
that connection your petitioners refer to certain affidavits giving de-
tails as to some of said occazions when such force and arms were used
as aforesaid, and the same are marked “Exhibit E” and prayed to be
made and taken as a part hereof with the same force and effect as if
herein set forth at length, and your petitioners further allege that to
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remedy such wrongs this petition is now presented after every other
means has been sought to obtain redress. Your petitioners further
allege that among the means sought to obtain redress in the premises
by vour petitioners and persons representing the same titles as your

SO;I petitioners, were and are the following:

0

hnd

€n- THE FINAL DISAGREEMENT OF THE MEXICAN AND
LY, AMERICAXN COMMISSIONERS AS TO THE MERITS
el OF CASE XO. 4, THE EL CHAMIZAL CASE, HAVE EX-
h, HAUSTED THE REMEDIES OF YOUR PETITIONERS
Ay BEFORE THAT TRIBUNAL.

gul

D3s 23.  Your petitioners further allege that by reason of the dis-

er agreement of the Mexican and American Boundary Commissioners in
Case No. 4 known as El Chamizal, yvour petitioners have exhausted
their remedies before that tribunal and no redress from the proceed-

n

4 ings of said Boundary Commission is available to them.

it

; THE MEXICAN COURTS HAVE REFUSED TO ACT.

24, Your petitioners further show that the conrts of Mexico
have refused, and perhaps under the conditions as they existed, very
properly, fo take jurisdiction over the premises and issues involved
for the reason that their attempt to do so would at onee produce serious
b political and international complications, the courts of the United
States and the State of Texas having assumed jurisdiction by reason
of the said lands having come actually on the northern side of the Rio
Grande River by reason of such change.

[S9)

THE PETITIONERS HAVE EXHAUSTED ANY POSSIBLE
REMEDY IN THE MEXICAN COURTS AND SAID
COURTS ARE WITHOUT JURISDICTION IN THE
PREMISES.

25. The Mexican Courts could not properly act in the premises
under the conditions, so petitioners further allege that as the lands in
question actually come on the northern side of the Rio Grande River’




and jurisdietion over them has been assumed by the Government f
the United States and the American Courts have actnally exerciseg
jurisdiction over the premises, any attempt on the part of the Mexicay
Courts to take jurisdiction or enforce their decrees through their ad
ministrative officers over such lands would lead to political and inter
national complications of a grave and serious nature, hence your peti
tioners have exhausted whatever remedy thev might have in the Mexi
can Courts.

YOUR PETITIONERS HAVE EXHAUSTED THEIR REME
DIES IN THE AMERICAN COURTS AND HAVE NOI
BEEN ALLOWED TO TRY THEIR TITLE UPOXN THE
MERITS OF THE CASE, BUT HAVE BEEXN FORE
CLOSED AXND ESTOPPED FROM SUCH INQUIRY.

26.  Your petitioners further show that they have attempted t
acquire a judicial determination by suits instituted in the Courts ¢
the United States of America of the validity of their claim of title t
the said lands in question, but having been thrown out of said court
and left remediless in the said premises without having been allowec
to go into their title on the merits of the controversies as to the natur
of their title in and to said land, said courts having ruled that so long
as the sovereignty of the United States has accepted jurisdiction ove
the premises your petitioners would not be allowed to allege or prove
that the title of the Mexican Government and of Mexican citizen
claiming under it still exists in said land.

27. Yowr petitioners aver that after the Imternational Bour
dary Commission failed to reach an agreement in ease No. 4, knowr
as “El Chamizal,” Mr. W, J. Warder, an American citizen, unde
contracts made with a large nuniber of petitioners, and having ac
quired an interest in the title to a part of the land included withir
the description of the aforesaid tract of land, instituted at El Paso
Texas, in the Circuit Court of the United States, a Court of prope
and competent jurisdiction, a suit to try the title to the lands de
seribed in his petition filed in said suit. Your petitioners annes
hereto a copy of the second amended original petition filed in sait
suit and of other pertinent proceedings therein, marked “Exhibit B,
and pray the same to be made and taken as a part hereof with th
same force and effect as if herein recited at length.
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The testimony of the witnesses in said suit is hereto annexed and
made part hereof in “Exhibit C” mentioned in Article Seventeen
hereof.

After the plaintiff had introduced said testimony, the defend-
ants in said cause, without the introduction or production of any testi-
mony whatever, and without attempting to prove or show any title to
the property involved, requested the Judge of the Court, by a written
motion filed by them, defendants, to adjudge the case against plaintiff.
Said motion and request to the trial Judge was as follows:

MOTION.

“The defendants ask the Court to strike out all evidence intro-
duced by plaintiff to show title to the property involved in Julio
Provencio for the reasons:

First:  Because the evidence does not establish any grant to the
property from the sovereignty of the soil.

Second: The evidence is not sutlicient to raise the presumption
of a grant to any person under whom plaintiff claims title to the land.

Third: Because the deeds offered in evidence were not recorded
in the County of El Paso, or deposited in the General Land Office of
Texas.

Fourth: Because the execution of the deeds under which
plaintiff claims is not established by the evidence.

Fifth: And the Court is asked to strike out all cridence intro-
duced by plaintiff respecting a change or changes in the Rio Grande
by avulsion, and all evidence to show that the land in controversy has
not been placed on the north side of the river by accretion, and all
evidence tending to show any title under the Government of Mexico
of property because the admitted facts and the evidence show: that the
United States Government and Texas are, and for many years have
been, exercising jurisdiction. civil and political, over the property,
and the United States Government claims, and for many years has
claimed, that said property is in the United States, and by its claim
has, for the purposes of this case, established the fact that the changes
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in the river by which the land was thrown upon the north side of the §
river were by accretion and not by avulsion.

Besry & Kewp,

Epwarps & Epwarbs,

Parrersox & Buexiex,
Atlorneys for Defendants.”

AR T TR NI TR

28.  Your petitioners further allege that the plaintiff in said
sult, whose cause and interest was identical with the claims of peti-
tioners to the territory now claimed by yvour petitioners, and which is
being withheld from them by American adverse claimants under
American titles, established by his testimony in said cause that, in so
far as the record or paper title to the property was concerned, he had
a good and perfect title.

This conclusion is sustained by the record evidence of the judg
went rendered by the Court in pronouncing his judgment upon the
first four grounds or cause set out, and ax above recited in the motion
of the defendant.

The judgment of the Court on said motion to dismiss was as
follows:

JUDGMENT OF THE COURT.

.

“The Court after hearing the argmuents of the respective counsel
overruled all of defendants™ objections, except the last one, which 1:
No. 5 in the motion, and is as follows:

5~

“5th:  And the Court is asked to sirike out all evidence intro-
duced by plaintiff respecting a change or changes in the Rio Grande
by avulsion and all evidence to show that the land in controversy has

2 not been placed on the north side of the viver by aceretion, and all
evidence tending to show any title under the Government of Mexico

8 of the property, because admitted facts and the evidence show that the
United States Government and Texas are, and for many vears have

been exercising jurisdiction, civil and political, over the property, and

the United States Government claims, and for many vears has

| ‘ claimed, that said property is in the United States, and by its elaim
has, for the purposes of this case, established the fact that the changes

in the river by which the land was thrown upon the north side of the
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river were by accretion and not by avulsion,” which fifth objection,
the others Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4 being overruled, was by the Court sus-
tained, and In sustaining said fifth objection the Court stated, in sub-
stance, that his reason for so doing was that the United States Govern-
ment. through its Boundary Commissioner, Col. Anson Mills, and
through its political department was asserting political as well as civil
jurizdiction over said territory and over said property in controversy,
and that the jurisdiction =0 excreised by the political department of
the United States must be presumed by the Court to be rightfully
exercized. and that the only wayv in which said jurisdiction could be
rightfully exercised would be by reason of aceretion.  That, there-
fore. the Court would refuse to heav any evidence whatever tending
to show that the changes in the channel of the river, from the place

N

where it was located in the vear 1852 by the Unired States Boundary
Comnuission to the place where =aid chammel now ix, was caused by
avalsion or In any other way save and except by aceretion and all testi-
mony introduced by the plaintiff to show that the changes in the chan-
nel were by avulsion was by the Court excluded and striken out, and
that the Court would refuse to hear auy tfurther testimony to <how
that the changes in the viver had been cansed by avulsion.™

Your petitioniers <ubmit that in overruling abjection 1 the Conrt
lield:  That the evidence was sufficient 1o establish a grant 1o the
property from the sovereignty of the =oil.

T overruling objection 2 of the defendants the Court held that
the evidence was suffleiont 1o vaize a presmmption of a grant to a per-
son under whom plaintiff claimed title to the land.  In overruling
the third objection, the Court decided that it was not necessary that
the deeds, under which plaintiff elaimed the property should Tare
been vecorded in Kl Paso County or deposited in the General Land
Office of Texaz.  And in overrnling the fourth abjection. the Court’s
jndgment was to the effeet that the execution of the deeds under which
the plaintiff elaimed the properts was established.

29, Your petitioners further allege that the effect of the jude-

ment above quoted sustaining defendants” fifth objection was and is.
to hold, judicially. that plaintiff would not. and will not. and that
these petitioners will not be permitted in the Conrts of the United
States to prove that the changes in the river were changes wrought by

the fovee or violence of the current, and were not such changes as=
worked a change of boundary. for the reazon ““that the United States
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Government and Texas ave, and for many years have been, exercising

jurisidiction, civil and political, over the property, and that the United
States Government claims (a fact, in the opinion of petitioners,
rather assumed by the Court than established by evidence, exeept in
so far as the admission of plaintiff that the United States and Texas
were exercising political jurisdiction over the territory, would sustain
or warrant such conclusion or assumption), and for many yvears had
claimed that said property is in the United States,” and that therefore
the Court must preswne that the changes in the river were by accre-
tion, that is, by “slow and gradual erosion and deposit of alluvium
and not by the abandonment of an existing river bed and the opening
of a new one.”

Indeed the langnage used by the Ilonorable Court in pronouncing
his judgment iz convineing that any appeal by vour petitioners for re-
dress to the Judiciary of the United States 1s utterly useless and can
be of no avail for the reasons stated in the concluding clause of said
judgment.

B

30, And vour petitioners further show that the plaintift in said
cause, representing the contention of vour petitioners. and loyally
secking to exhanst all legal avenues in which relietf might be found,
prosecuted appeals from the judgment rendered against him in said
case to the United States Cireuit Court of Appeals for the Fifth Cir-
cuit, which thereupon by its judgment confirmed the judgment of the
lower court made as aforesaid, foreclosing and precluding the plaintiff
in said case from proving the merits of his case, and thereupon the
plaintiff in said cause representing the contention of petitioners,
prosecuted an appeal to the Supreme Court of the United States, but
in said Court the said appeal was dismissed on the ground that said
Court had no jurisdiction of the same by reason of the fact that on the
record as presented no eonstitutional or treaty rights were involved
and thereby prevented any inquiry into the merits of said claim of
title involved in said suit, and to the record of said appeals establish-
ing said propositions that the plaintiff therein under said decisions
has never been able to prove the merits of the cause, but has been fore-
closed and prevented from doing so by reason of the legal propositions
laid down and enforced by the said Courts respectively, vour peti-
tioners beg leave to refer to the original of said records and to make
the same a part hereof with the same force and effeet as if set forth
herein at length.
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5100 Your petitioners have thus exhausted every method of
paintaining their rights in the premizes except the wethod of this
petition and this request that the Government of your Excellency shall
protect ad preserve the rights of vour petitioners through the diplo-
matic channel of communication of the same to the United States of
Awerica and the prosecution of same through diplomatic chunnels
an inquiry into the merits of your petitioners’ claim of title and the
obtaining of the proper relief to vour petitioners thereon.

32, Your petitioners turther show that the lunds of vour pet-
gloners and Mexican territory have thus been appropriated by Ameri-
can citizens and are being appropriated to the uses and purposes of
the State of Texas and the Connty and City of K1 Paso, and that
Awerican eirizens ave now wrongfully nsing, occupying and collecting
rents and revenues theretrom, and that the State of Texus aud County
and Ciry of El Paso are leveing and eollecting taxes upon said prop-
erty, atd 1n sueh instunces as where failure 1 made 1o pay rhe taxes
levied upon the property, are selling and couveying the properiy for
the purpose of enforeing the pavient of taxes thereon, whew, as a
matter of facr, said lands belone to and ave a part of the ervitory of
Mexieo and arve subjeet to raxation by =aid Republie off Mexico and ave
of vizht owned and should be in the possession of your pefitioners al
other Mexican citizens of vight owning the wwue rirde to the <aie.

33, Your petitioners further allege that the right of vour peri-
tloners to resume in any iustance theiv forner possessien of <aid fand
has alwavs, since the changes in the channel of the Rio Grande been
denicd and still is denied and foreibly vesisted by American cirizens
now claiming said property.

34, Your petitioners further allege that the properiy of which
thev have thus been wrongfully deprived by American citizens and
the \merican Government is of a very grear valne and not less than
at leasr the sum of $

35. Your petitioners further allege that backed up and en-
conraged by the fallacions and wrongful contentions of the \merican
member of the Boundary Commission, those holding said property
are claiming title thereto under the false and mistaken view and clain
that =aid land was accreted to the =o0il of the Juan Maria Ponce de
Leon and other American and State of Texas grant=, which originally
lay on the northern bank of the Rio Grande River and had zaid river

for the southern boundary.
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36.  Your petitioners allege with the greatest emphasis that not

only was ample evidence adduced before the International Boundary

Commission to show that the changes in the ehannel of the Rio Grande §
were not such as under the treaties between the two Governments, £
worked any change in the International Boundary line, but that much
more testimony to the same effect, and absolutely mndisputable, could

have been adduced before said Comnission, had the Commission given
attorneys represenfing petitioners, as thev were respectfully requested
to do, the opportunity of presenting more witnesses and testimony.
In addition to the testimony adduced and that proffered to the Inter-
national Boundary Comimission, the testimony under oath of eleven
witnesses was heard, but afterwards disregarded and held for naunght
by the trial Judge, in the trial of the case of W. J. Warder v. Mrs,
Laura Loomis and others hereinbefore cited, all of which testimony
shows conclusively that there were two avulsive changes in the channel
of the Rio Grande, one in 1562 and the other in 1863, and both the
result of violence of the current, and that in both instances the rives
abandoned an existing channel and made for itself a new chanmnel,
thus cutting off and leaving north of =aid new channel the property of

your petitioners, and in that eonnection your petitioners refer to
=4

“Exhibit 7 hereto anmexed containing the testimony given in =aid

VR
Ry

suit in regard to the avulsive changes in the channel of the river.
THE AMERICAN COMMISSIONER ON THE INTER-
NATIONAL (WATER) BOUNDARY  COMMISSION
WAS DISQUALIFIED BY REASON OF PERSONAL IXN-
TEREST IN THE RESULT OF SATD CONTROVERSIES,
AND THE PERSONAL INTEREST OF NEAR RELA-
TIVES AXD KIN IN THE RESULT OF SAID COX-
TROVERSIES, TO SIT AS A JUDGE OR MEMBER OF
SAID COMAISSION IN SO FAR AS THE AMERICAN
AXND MEXICAN TITLES INVOLVED IN CASE XNO. 4,
KNOWX AS EL CHAMIZAL CASE, ARE CONCERNED.

37.  Your petitioners with much reluetance and protesting that
unquestionably the sovereignty of the United States and its executive
officers at the time in question had no knowledge whatever of the facts
now to be set forth, respectfully show to this Government that under
no cireumstances whatsoever should the International (Water) Boun-
darv Commission continue in existence, for the reasons and facts now
to be stated disqualifving the American Commissioner Hon. Anson
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Mills from further participation in the settlement of the boundary dis-
pute‘between sald Governments, at least in so far as the settlement of
the boundary involved in the Case No. 4, known as “El Chamizal,” is
concerned.

33.  Your petitioners respectfully allege to this Government
that at the time Case No. 4, know as “E]l Chamizal,” was sub judice
before said Commissioners, the IHon. Anson Mills, American Com-
missioner, was under the well recognized rules of the common and
civil law, by reason of personal interest in the result of said con-
troversy and personal interest of near relatives and kin in the result
of said controversy, disqualified to sit as a Judge or member of said
Commission in determining said judicial question in so far as the
labors of said Commission extended to the matter of determining the
boundary line at El Paso, Texas, and Juarez, Mexico, of the Mexican
and American rights in and to the Chamizal District.

39.  Your petitioners further allege that at the outset of the
sittings of said International (Water) Boundary Comunission in re-
gard to Case No. 4, known as El Chamizal, it became important to
determine where on the land as existing at present the filum aquae
and banks of the River Rio Grande ran at the time of the Treaty of
Guadalupe Hidalgo, viz.. 1848 or 1852, and that the available means
of ascertaining such line were substantially as follows:

Tirst: The map of Emory & Salazar made on a scale of
1/60,000 in the year 1552 and the plotting of the same upon the land.

Second: The calls in certain ancient deeds and surveys on both
sides of the river plotted on the land.

Third: The testimony of witnesses in regard to the changes in
the channel.

40.  Your petitioners further allege that the petitioners in
Chamizal case No. 4, and especially those represented by attorneys
Dongherty & Kirby, whose letter to the International Boundary Com-
mission, together with the exhibits thereto attached is more fully se
forth in paragraph 19 hercof, claimed that the river of 1852 and the
river of 1827 ran in substantially the same channel, and that such
channel when plotted on the ground would have made the filum aquae
of said river begin at a point at or near where Block No. 168 in "Camp-
bell’s Addition to the City of E1 Paso lies on the present north bank
of the channel of 1903, and running thence southeaster]ly to a point
at or near the corner of Chihuahua and Second Streets in said eity;
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thence along about Second Street in sald city to a point at or near
and between ['tah and Stanton Streets ; thence northeasterly to a point
at or near the corner of First and Kansas Streets in said city, thence
still northeasterly between the County Court House and jail by a
somewhat irregular line through Blocks Nos. 198, 199, 200, 205 and
204 in Campbell’s Addition, and thence along about San .\ntonio
Street from Saint Vrain Street to the easterly side line of the map
of Magottin's \ddition to the City of El Paso, and thence easterly by
a slightly curved line to the bank of the chamnel of the Rio Grande
River as it existed before the 1sland cut-oft, the said river by a plot-
ting on the land itzelf as at present existing and mapped being maore
accurately shown by the wap presented herewith and marked ~Ex-
hibit G, the said map containing a plotting apon the said map of
the City of o1 Paso as now existing, of the channel of 1327-1552 aud
of the channel of 1562 and of the present channel of 19035 of the Rio
Grande River as claiwed by vour petitioners, and that under said
claim made by the said parties clatming under the Mexican title and
instituting and assisting in the prosecution of the Mexican titles in
said El Chamizal Case No. 4 before said International (Water)
Bomndary Commission, the premises conveved by the deeds herein-
after mentioned, execured by both the Hon, Anson Mills and by the
ITon. W, W, Mills, were included in the disputed portion of the lands
the title to which as between the American and Mexican (overnments
was Intended to be Iitigated in said El Chamizal CaZe No. + before
satd International (Water) Boundary Commission.

41, Your petitioners at the same time bring to yvour atrention
the fact that according to the map provizionally agreed npon between
the Hon. Anson Mills as American Commissioner and the Hon. F.
Xavier Osorno as Mexican Commissioner. and given at page 97 of the
Proceedings of said Commission, the channel of the river of 1832 was
plotted on said map considerably to the south of the said actual chan-
nel as it truly existed on said date, o that the filam aquae thercof ran
substantially from a point where a westerly prolongation of the pres-
ent Sixth Sireet interseets the present channel of the Rio Grande
River, and running thence about southeasterly and easterly, passing
the junction of El Pasc and Seventh Streets substantially between
Fighth and Ninth Street.to Florence Street, and thence in a north-
easterlv direction to the channel of the Rio Grande River as it ex-
isted before the Island cut-off, and that if the said channel of 1852 as
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so plotted on said provisional map so agreed upon by said Commis-
sioners is the true channel of said river in 1832, the premises con-
veved by the deed from Hon. Anson Milly, hereinafter wmentioned,
and w portion of the premises conveyed by the deeds from Hon. W.
W, Mills to certain grantees hereinafter mentioned would not be in-
cluded in the disputed territory, but there wonld still remain as in-
cluded in the unguestionably disputed territory of the El Chamizal
Districr the following deseribed property included in said deeds from
Hon. W. W. Mills, viz.:  Blocks 19, 20, 22, 37, 41, 42, 43 and 64, of
the uap of Campbell’s Addition to the City of El Paso, Texas.

20 Youwr petitioners turther allege ihat at the tine he <o acted
as Judge of the dispute in the El Chamizal Case No. 4, said 1lon.
Anson Mills was interested as a property owner who had previously
warranted the titde under the alleged Mwerican title, as hereinafter
set forth, to Block No. 101 on the map of Campbell’s Addirion to the
City of El Paso, m procuring the location of the il aguae of the
channel of the River Rio Grande us it existed in the year 1552 to the
sotithnvard of said block say along about Eighth Street, instcad of to
the northward of said block along about Sceond and Fivst Streets,
which was elaimed to be the true Bne by the claimants to the Mexican
titke 1 osadd Bl Chanizal Caze Noo 4oand in that the acrion of <aid
Covintissioners in refusing to heav any testimony of witnesses or re-
ceive any other evidence of the location of said channel than the
alleged plotting of the same from said small map of Emory & Salazar
by the engineers of the Commission, wax a judicial act of =aid Hon.
An=on Mills so locating =aid line as to free himself by snch decision
from the pozsibility of being liable in damages on his covenant of
warranty in the deed hereinafter mentioned.

43, The said [Hon. Anzon Mills was tliﬂ'{lmﬁﬁed as Judg‘e 10
sit on said Commission at said time, and is now disqualified for the
reason that for many vears prior thereto the said Hon. Anzon Mills
asserted and is now asserting a claim to land Iving within the territory
betore deseribed. and which claim and title is adverse and inimical
and in diveet conflict with the claim of vour petitioners and of the
Republic of Mexico, said claim being founded on the alleged Ameri-
can title to said property. and that a decision in said case adverse to
the alleeed American title would have resulted in making said Hon.
Anson Mills liable in considerable monev under covenants of war-
ranty which he had theretofore made in a certain deed convering the
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alleged American title in and to certain property lying within the
said Chamizal District, and in this connection your petitioners aver
as follows:

4+. Your petitioners allege that the said Hon. Anson Mill
since and before the year 1887 has claimed to be the owner of certain
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lands situate within the boundaries of the territory claimed by your :

petitioners and the Republic of Mexico and the said lands are more
particularly described in the deed hereinafter mentioned, and that
on the 24th day of May, 1887, the said Hon. Anson Mills duly exe-
cuted for $750 to him cash in hand paid and delivered to E. H. Alwon
of El Paso, Texas, and Jesse Haston of Miles City, Montana, his
certain deed in writing under seal whercby the said Hon. Anson
Mills as grantor conveved to the said E. H. Alton and Jesse Haston
as grantees certain lands lying within the said Chamizal District and
known as Block No. 101, according to the map of Campbell’s Addi-
tion to the City of El Paso, more particularly described as follows:
Beginning at a point in the westerly line of Oregon Strect ninety feet
southerly from the northeast corner of said block; thence running
southerly along the line of said Oregon Street (33) thirty-five feet;
thence at right angles westerly (120) one hundred and twenty feer 10
an alley; thence at right angles northerly and parallel with said
Oregon Street (35) thirty-five feet; thence at right angles easterly
(120) one hundred and twenty feet to Oregon Street, the point of
beginning. Said parcel of land having a front of (35) thirty-five
feet on Oregon Street, running back between parallel lines (120) one
hundred and twenty feet and being the whole of lot (6) six and (9)
nine feet adjoining of lot (7) seven in said Block No. (101) one hun-
dred and one.

And thereupon as grantor did enter into covenants with the said
grantees to warrant and forever defend, all and singular. the said
premises unto the said grantees. their heirs and assigns, against every

person whomsoever lawfully claiming, or to claim the same, or any
part thereof, and that a certified copy of the said deed is hereto an-

nexed and marked “Fxhibit H” and prayed to be made and taken as
a part hereof.

45. That the said Hon. Anson Mills was disqualified as a Judge

to sit on said Commission at said time, and is now disqualified for the

reason that his brother, Hon. W. W, Mills, and thus related to him

within two degrees of consanguinity, had for many vears prior thereto
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asserted and 1s now asserting a claiw to land lying within the territory
before described, and which claim and title is adverse, inimical and
in direct conflict with the claim of petitioners and of the Republic of
Mexico, said claim being founded on the alleged American title to said
property aud that a decizion in said case adverse to the Ameriean title
would have resulted in making the said Hon, W, W, Mills, brother of
said 1lon. Anson Mills, liable in large swuns nnder various covenants
of warranty which he had theretotore made in certain deeds conveyving
the alleged Aierican title in and to certain property lying within said
Chamizal Distriet, and in this commection your petitioners aver as
follows:

46, Your petitioners allege that said Hon, W, W, Mills, since
the vear 1552 has claimed, either for hiwselt, or in behalf of his wife,
to be the owner of certain lands sitnated within the bonndaries of the
territory claimed by petitioners and the Republic of Mexico, and
which said lands are partially deseribed as follows: The eastern fifty
feet of fractional west one-halt of Block 71 in Camnpbell Addition to
the City of Kl Paso, which tract of land lies within the disputed terri-
tory as does practieally all of =aid Campbell Addition.

47, Your petitioners allege that sald Anson Mills was further
dizqualitied for the following reasons, to wit: Ior the reason that
while it appears that the parcel of land immediately above described
iz the only land now claimed and rendered for taxation by Mrs. Mary
H. Mills, wife of W, W. Mills, the deed records of El Paso County,
Texas, show that W. W, Mills has excented more than twenty sales and
travsfers of lands Iving within the disputed territory and executed
deeds warranting the titles to <aid lands against all claimants and par-
ticularly against the elaim of petitioners thereto.

48, And vour petitioners in support of the facts above stated
attach hereto certified copies of three of said deeds copied from the
records of E1 Paso Conuty, and marked “Exhibit T and prayed to
be made and taken as a part hereof with the same force and effeet as
if herein recited at length, showing conveyances made by said W. W.
Mills, of the property mentioned at the dates mentioned and contain-
ing covenants of warranty as to the title to the same and prayv permis-
sion to bring in further certified copies of said other deeds at any
hearing‘ on this‘ petition as additional parts of said “Exhibit 1.”

The foregoing premises being fully considered your petitioners
respectfully pray that vour Excelleney will take the necessary or




proper steps in the premises to preseut and prosecute on behalf of yowrd
petitioners through diplomatic channels in the International Forum#
the right and title of the Republic of Mexico and your petitioners as
Mexican eitizens in and to the lands in the Chamizal Disivies herein
above et forth, and rthereapon to procure the transter of the pe rssts\iun%
to said Lands back to the sovereignty and control of the Republic of
Mexico and in and to the private vight and title of vour peritioners iy

order that the titles and rights obtained by vour petitioners 1o the =aid
lands througl the said Republic of Mexico max be maintained and

protecied and mayv be vespeeted by thie United States of Amieviea und
-

the State of Texas awd the eltizens thereot, as 15 cijoined and enarn
teed to the Repnblie of Mexico and o vonr peritioners wder the =ev-
eral treaties above set forth, for nuless vonr Honorable Governnien
shall act i the premizes vour petitioners as above set forth ave ntterly |
remediless in the premises and withont the possibility of presenting
the nicrit of their case or titles or o obrain relief for theiy wrones and
injuries above reelted in any eourt or foruw. and your peritioners
farther pray that by reason of the facts above set forth anil establi<hed
proving that the said Hons An=on Mills) Nmeriean Conuniszioner, -
ueler the International ( Water) Doundary Connnission above men
tioned 1x disqualificd to act as sueh on the merits of the disputed ritle
to the El Chamizal Distvier thar he ar least be exeluded frow oll or-
ther participation as a Judge or Commissicner in passiug upon the
right or title of yonr peritioners to the lainds 1o the Clhamizal Distvier,
and that arrangements or protocols be made with the \merican Gov-
ernment tor the appointment of a new special commission to arbinrate
or pazz upen the vight and title of vonr petitioners in and 1o the Tands
in sald Chamizal Distriet, or that under proper protocols agreed upon
for the purpose an arbitration board be appointed before whow vonr
petitioners may present the merits of their elaims and obtain the velief
to which they arve justly entitled. and your petitioners will ever pray.

Respecttully =ubmitted,

Juarez, Mexieo, September —. 1905,
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NAMES TO PETITION.

PEDRO Y. GARCIA.
JESUS D. MONTES.
E. ORTUZAR.

MANUEL TRUEDBA.
JOSE 0. ALVAREZ

CARMEN S, V. DE SAMANIEGO
for me and as first exeeutrix of my

deceased husband.
ANTONIO TIRRE.
ESPIRIDION BARGAS.
ZENON VARGAS.
MATIAS VELARDE.
MARILANO FERRALES.

FRANCISCO PROVENCIO.

ANTONTIO FERRALES.
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SANTOS HERRERA.
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APOLONIO CARABAJAL.

RODRIGO TIRRE.

MARCELO ARMIJO.

ADVERTO ARMIJO.

JOSE MA. SIERRA.

~BSAN TA CRUZ BARGAS.

TOMAS ORTEGA.

CASIMIRO BENAVIDES.

MONICO BENAVIDES.

JESUS DOMINGUES.

JESUS SIERRA.

MARIA ABALOS.

RAFAEL BARGAS.

ANTONIO CADENA.
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RAMON CUARON.
FRANCISCO CUARON.

PABLO TELLES.

1/ SEAL AND STAMP>
N\

In the City of Juarez, District of Bravos, of the State of Chihua-
hua, of the Republic Mexico, on the 6th day of the month of Novem-
ber, 1903, before me, Licienciado Rafael del Castillo, Judge of Letters
of this distriet, acting in legal form and by virtue of being legally
empowered Notary acting in this city, and having been authorized by
the Government, appeared Messrs. Santiago Alvarado and Jesus D.
Montes, both married and of age, the first a merchant and resident of
the City of El Paso, Texas, County of El Paso, Texas, but now tem-
porarily in Ciudad Juarez, and the second an employe and resident of
this same city, and each one of said affiants, Messrs. Alvarado and
Montes, whom I certify to know, said under oath: That they know
well and have known for a long time the thirty-one (81) persons whose
names appear on the pages foregoing, which are pages 41, 42 and 43
of this book.

That each one of said thirtv-one (31) persons are residents and
citizens of the City of Juarez, of the State of Chihuahua, Mexico,

and declare moreover that they are owners respectively of parts and

parcels of lands that are now on the north side of the Rio Bravo, in
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and near El Paso, Texas, and which lands were originally on the
south side of said river, that is to say, in the State of Chihuahua and &

near the City of Juarez, in what was formerly known as the “Distriet &

TG e

of E1 Chamizal,” which lands are fully described on page eight (8)

of the foregoing printed petition.

E
¢

As witnesses to this act are named the Messrs. Ouésimo Ilernandez
Obregon and Rafael Rocha, of age and residents of this city, the first
a business agent and married, and the sccond an euploye and <ingle,
fully able to testify according to law and whom I certify ro know and
these named witnesses sign before me with the affiants the Messrs,

Alvarado and Montes. This T certify.

(Signed) JESUS D. MONTES.
SANTIAGO ALVARADO.
O. TERNAXNDEZ OBREGOX.
RAFAEL ROCHA (tlourish),
RAFAET DEL GABTILLO.
SAMUEL REYNOLDS,

Secretary.
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“EXHIBIT A

17 Battery Place,
New York, September 6, 1905.
Proressor LEwis M. Haver,
Consulting Engineer,

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

Dear Professor Haupt:

Having knowledge of the fact that you are regarded as one of the
highest authorities in the United States on matters relating to river
hydraulies, I take the liberty to inquire whether it would have been
possible for any engineers, even though they possessed the highest
professional skill, to have come within say half a mile of locating with
absolute definiteness, in the vear 1896, the line of an old abandoned
river channel as said channel existed in the year 1852, from a map
plotted on a scale of 1,60,000, without the aid of any field notes of
said ancient survey showing the meanders of the stream.

Will you also kindly give me the equivalent for one inch of the
map drawn to said scale. Very truly vours,

BrewsTER CAMERON.

LEWIS M. HAUPT,
Consulting Engineer,
107 North 35th Street,

Philadelphia. Pa.. Sept. 15, 1905.
Brewster Oanerox, Esq.,
New York, N. Y.
Dear Sir:
In response to vour favor of the 6th inst., inquiring as to the
ability to relocate a stream from an old survey on a small scale, it gives
me pleasure to state that in the accompanying “Table of Map Equiv

alents,” vou will find, No. 33, will give the number of miles, or frac-
tion thereof, to the inch of map on a scale of 1 60,000, as 0”.947; so
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that a half wile would be represented by less than a half inch of
map (0”.473).

In alluvial bottoms, the beds of streams subject to floods, are very
unstable, swinging sometimes several miles out of the bed in a few
weeks and to attempt to fix a location of such a stream from a chart
made nearly a half century before, and especially without the original |
field notes, would be of no value whatever as a basis in determining
boundaries. Moreover even were the “meanders” given, the secular
variation of the compass should also be carefully determined before
the boundaries could be retraced, even fromn the notes.  Early surveys,
where land is of little value, were frequently made by locating only a
few points on a strean at long intervals and assuming the “meanders”
between them. In so general a map as the scale indicated, this was
probably the method followed, so that no reliance could be placed on
the map as a basis for the establishment of a claim.

If this does not fully cover vour inquiry please advize me and
I will be more specific. Very truly vours,

Lewrs M. ITaver.
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“EXHIBIT B.”

PLAINTIFY'S SECOND AMENDED ORIGINAL PETITION.,
Froen Aeriv 7, 1903,

In the United States Circuit Court for the Western District of
Texas, at El Paso, Texas.

W. J. WarnEeR,

[No. 340.

Us.

Mzs, Lavra Loowis, et al.

Suit in Trespass to Try Title and for damages, pending in the
Cirenit Court of the United States for the Western District of the
State of Texas, at El Paso, Texas.

To the Honorable Judges of the United States Circuit Court for
the Western District of the State of Texas, El Paso, Texas.

In the above cause now comes the plaintiff and with the leave of
the Court first had, files this, his second amended original petition, in
lien of his first amended original petition, filed herein November
10th, 1902, and of his first supplemental petition, filed November 11,
1902,

Your petitioner, W. J. Warder, a citizen of Stanislaus County,
State of California, complaining of Mrs. Laura Loomis, R. C.
Loomis, A. M. Loomis, Mrs. Pansy Latta, W. B. Latta, Mrs. Annie
Webb, M. H. Webb and Ralph Loomis, heirs of A. M. Loomis, de-
ceased, residents of El Paso, Texas, defendants herein, would most
respectfully represent to this Honorable Court:

First: That this is a suit of ecivil nature, at common law,
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wherein the matter in dispute exceeds, exclusive of interest and costs,
the sum of value of twenty-five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), and
arising under the Constitution and Laws of the United States, a5
well as the Treaties made, under its authority, between the United
States of America and the Republic of Mexico, and involves the con-
struction of said treaties; and in which there is a controversy be
tween citizens of different States, that is to say, the plaintiff herein §
W. J. Warder, is a citizen of the State of California, and the defend-
ants, Mrs. Laura Loomis, R. C. Loomis, A. M. Loomis, Mrs. Pansy
Latta, W. B. Latta, Mrs. Annie Webb, M. I Webb and Ralph
Loomis, heirs of A. M. Loomis, deceased, are residents and citizens
of Kl Paso, State of Texas, and in the Western District of Texas.

Second: Your petitioner respeetfully shows to this Honorable
Court that on the first (1st) day of Janunary, A. D. 1900, plaintif
was lawfully seized and possessed of a certain tract of land herein-
after described and situated in what is commonly called the County &
of El Paso, and State of Texas, but in truth and in fact situated be- £
tween the present channel of the Rio Grande River and the channel |
as 1t existed in 1852, and between the present City of El Paso, Texas,
and the City of Juarez, Mexico. That the national, state, county
and municipal authorities of the United States, State of Texas
County of El Paso and the City of El Paso are exercising political
jurisdiction over said territory, collecting taxes and revenues thereon.
That on the first (1st) dayv of January, A. D, 1900, plaintiff was
holding the property hereinafter described in fee simple.  That on
the day and vear aforesaid the defendants enteved upon =aid land.
cjected the plaintiff therefrom and wrongfully withholds from the
plaintiff the possession thereof, to plaintiff's damage of five hundred
dollars ($500.00) ; that the premises so entered upon and wrongtully &
withheld by the defendants from plaintiff are described as follows,
to wit: From west to east on the south side one hundred and five
(103) varas, bounded by the main road; from south to north on the
east side four hundred and twelve and two-fourths (412 2/4) varas,
bounded by the lands of Maria Ortega Sedillos; from east to west on
the north, one hundred seven and one-half (1074) varas, bounded by
the Franciseo Tucero ditch from the Chamizal diteh, and thence from
north to south on the west is four hundresl and eight and three ¢
fourths (408%) varas, bounded hy the National Road (Stanton
Street). Including Blocks 25, 32, 48 and a part of Block 57, accord-
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ing to map of Campbell’s Addition to El Paso, Texas, as the same is
shown upon the maps and plats of said City of E1 Paso of the addi-
tions thereto, and of which said property plaintiff and those under
whom he claims the same had for many years, to say, since the year
1817, claiming to own the same under and by virtue of deeds and con-
veyances thereof, been in the peaceable, quiet, adverse and actual pos-
session of said land.

This plaintiff further says that for more than ten years next be-
fore the filing of this suit and before the filing of suit No. 277, en-
titled W. J. Warder vs. The Campbell Real Estate Company, et al.,
out of which this suit grew by reason of an order granting a severance
to the said defendants from other defendants in said cause No. 277,
and he and those under whom he claims have had and held and has
had and held peaceable, adverse and continuous possession of said
tracts of land, cultivating, using and enjoying the same, wherefore he
pleads the statute of tem years limitation and his title acquired
thereby in bar of and against any claim of title thereto asserted by
the defendants.

Plaintiff further says that for more than forty years next before
the filing of this suit, before the severance granted in said cause No.
277 and before the filing of the original petition filed in said cause
No. 277, hie and those under whom he elaims said property have had
and held actual, peaceable, quiet and adverse possession thereof, cul-
tivating. using and enjoying the same, wherefore he says that by vir-
tue of his having continued possession of said premises as aforestated,
he has by virtue of such possession acquired such good and =ufficient
title thereto as will bar and is paramount to any title or claim as-
serted by the defendants to said property. And plaintiff prays that
he be quieted in his title and possession of said property.

The plaintiff further shows that the annual rent of said property
is of the value of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00), wherefore
plaintiff pravs that defendants be cited to answer this petition and for
judgment against said defendants for the above deseribed premises,
for his damages and for costs of suit, and all such other and further
general and special relief.

Jay Goon & SeyyMour THURMOXND,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.
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(Indorsed): No. 340, W. J. Warder vs. Mrs. Laura Loomi §
et al. Plaintiff’s second Amended Original Petition. Filed Aprj}
7, 1903. D. H. Hart, Clerk. This suit is brought as well to ry 4
title as for damages. Jay Good and Seymour Thurmond.

Before said Circuit Court, at its April term, 1903, the abov §
case of W. J. Warder vs. Loomis was brought to trial and testimony 1
was introduced to the following effect: ¢
i

Plaintiff, W. J. Warder, proved by the introduction of the origi ;
nal letters that on October 15th, 1817, one Pablo Perea conveyed t §
Domingo Abalos the land sued for, upon which was a house of four §
rooms and one hall, with garden adjoining said house and agricultural §
lands. That on Oectober 18, 1841, Domingo Abalos conveyed the ¢
same property to Francisco San Juan, who conveyed it to Julio§
Provencio, by whom it was conveyed to Santiago Alvarado, who eon §
veyed it to the plaintiff Warder. That plaintiff proved a sufficient §
paper title to the property is virtually and sufficiently admitted by §
the Court, before which the case was tried, in his judgment overruling &
the first four grounds of paragraphs Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4, of the motion ¢
of defendants to strike out of record the testimony introduced by
plaintiff to show title to the property. Plaintiff then in order t§
complete his case and compel defendants to prove a better title than §
that proven by himself, introduced eleven (11) witnesses, to wit: &
Sam Bean, an American eighty years old; Marcelo Armijo, 83 vears §
old; Jesus Telles, 76 vears old; Pablo Telles, 70 years old; Antonio §
Puertas, 70 years old; Reymundo Cano, 65 years old; Matias §
Velarde, 56 vears old; Silverio Varela, 56 yvears old; Jose Maria
Sierra, 65 years old; Dr. Mariano Samaniego, who has lived in
Juarez off and on since 1852, and Esperidion Provencio, 55 vears old
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EXHIBIT «C.”

Testimony in case of W. J. Warder vs. Mrs. Laura Loomis, et
als., in the U. S. Cireuit Court of the District of Texas.

SAM BEAN, sworn for the plaintiff, testified :

My name is Sam Bean. Am 80 years old, and live in New
Mexico. I was first here in El Paso in 1846. I was then with Col.
Donovan’s troop as a soldier. Our company was quartered in Juarez,
just across the river from here, for three weeks or a month. While
in Juarez, which was then known as Paso del Norte, and this City, El
Paso, was known as Franklin, we, the soldiers, oceupied the public
buildings and offices. I saw a great many of the public documents,
Government papers and archives destroyed. The papers were taken
out of pigeon holes, packages and books, torn out and used by the
soldiers for all kinds of purposes, such as kindling fires and for
private purposes. Whenever a soldier would want a sheet of paper
for any purpose he would walk up to a pigeon hole where they were
kept, or to a book, and take what he wanted. These papers were torn
up and scattered evervwhere. I could not read Spanish and of course
could not say what particular papers were destroyed. We, the
soldiers, paid no attention anyway to the character of the papers, and
consequently I cannot say that any of -the papers related to lands.
All T know about it is that we took possession of the public offices and
that a great many of the papers found by us in those offices were de-
stroved. At that time, in 1846, the Rio Grande River ran about
along where the present Opera ITouse now stands.  After 1846, T was
ot in 1 Paso again until about 1858, when I passed through here
again and went up into New Mexico, where | settled. T often came
to E1 Paso after that. I knew Juan Ponce de Leon well. The town
of Franklin was located on his land. T often stopped at his house,
which stood where what is now called Center Block, north of San
Franciseo Street. Tt was only a short ways from De Leon’s house
down to the river. I often lead my horse from the house down to
the river to water him. 1 was not here during the flood of 1862, but
on visiting El Paso after that I noticed that the river had moved a
long wavs southward. Since T have been here this time as a witness
in this case, I have been upon the ground for the purpose of tracing
out, if T could, the channel in which the river ran where T ﬁrst_knew
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it and up to about 1858. I can trace the old channel; in some plag [
it is very distinet, in others it has been built on and filled in. T E
member when it ran along about where the Opera House is, between f
Overland and First Streets, and that it ran just back of the Cour f
house, between where the Court House stands and where the County

Jail is.

MARCELO ARMIJO, sworn for plaintiff, testified:

I am 83 years of age, have lived at Paso del Norte, Mexico, now ¢
known as Juarez, all my life. I knew Julio Provencio and Fran
cisco San Juan, they are both dead, they lived in Juarez. I knew
the property involved in this suit, knew it when Francisco San Juan |
owned it and conveyed it to Julio Provencio. The property at the
time San Juan owned it was on the south side or right-hand side of §
the Rio Grande River, at the time called Rio Bravo. The property {
lay next to and adjoining what was known as the Camino Nacional
or National Road, and what is now known as Stanton Street, in the §
City of El Paso. The property lay east of this road and mnorth of §
what was known as the road to the dam. The road to the dam ran f
along with reference to the property in controversy where Eleventh §
Street in the City of El Paso now runs. San Juan never lived oo
the property that I know of. He had tenants or laborers cultivating
it.  Provencio lived on it and cultivated it up to until about 1865
when he was forced to leave it by the overflow. I am familiar with §
the Rio Grande River and its changes since 1852. Prior to the year g
1852, the Rio Grande River ran about where Mayer’s Opera House §
now stands, between Overland and First Streets of the City of Elf
Paso. It ran on up near the County Court House between the Court &
House and County Jail. In 1862, there was a great rise in the Rio
Grande River. The contiguous conntry was overflowed. The rist E
lasted about three or four months and when it subsided the river set
tled down in a channel near, just north of, the Ketelsen and Degatat
house ; which is at the corner of El Paso and Fifth Streets, in the
City of El Paso, where the channel remained until 1865, when after §
another big overflow in that year, it, the channel, changed to wher
it is now, that is about where Thirteenth Street in the City of E
Paso is. Before the overflow in 1862, all of the country or land be )
tween where the river ran prior to 1862 and the place or channel ©

T
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which it changed at or near Ketelsen & Degatau's at the corner of
El Paso and Fifth Streets, was in cultivation, various people.resided
there, they were farmers and raised grain and fruits, they had
orchards, vineyards and gardens. The floods of 1862 washed down
all the hiouses, which are built of adobe, a kind of mud brick which
melts easily, the vineyards and orchards were washed away, the water
was all over the land, the people were forced to abandon their houses.
After the flood subsided there were left some dead grape vines, fallen
trees and roots. A few trees were left standing, but all were killed.
Here and there could be found a leaning tree and occasionally a
fallen tree and dead grape vines. The water was over both banks of
the river.  The river came up into what is now Juarez nearly to what
is known as the Chamizal Ditch, which runs through the present town
of Juarez. After the flood of 1862 had subsided, the people re-
turned to the lands lyving south, that is on the Mexican side of the
then channel of the river, and again renewed agricultural pursuits.
Then in 1865 a flood equal to or perhaps greater than the one of 1862
came and the people were again forced to leave and their ovchards,
vinevards, houses, ete., were again swept away. The strong current
of the river during these overflows was toward the Mexican or south
bank of the river, and washed that bank away. The river would rise
quite [early] everv vear at that time. From say 1852 and prior
thereto until after 1865, the Rio Grande River here at El Paso, El
Paso being on the north side of the river and Juarez immediately
opposite on the south side was a running stream and always had water
in it.  Of late vears it goes nearly or quite dry at this point during
the late summer months. There was never any change in the chan-
nel of the river except in time of overflow. When the river was at
ordinarily low water mark no changes in the bank occurred. The
ouly changes in time of overflow were in 1862 and 1865, as I have
stated. The first one being in 1862, when the river changed from
about where the Opera House now is to just north of Ketelsen and
Degatau’s or to Fifth Street. There is a stump of a mesquite tree in
the sidewalk on E1 Paso Street. The tree of which this is the stump,
prior to 1862, stood on the south side of the river. After the flood of
1862, this stnmp was on the north side of the river. The stump is
still there at this time. I remember the tree, it was one to which the
canoes in crossing from the north to the south side of the river were
tied on the south side of the river.
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JESUS TELLES, sworn for plaintiff, testified :

1 am 65 years of age, and live in the City of Juarez, formerly
known as Paso del Norte, on the south side of the Rio Grande River,
opposite the City of El Paso, formerly known as Franklin, on the
north side of the river. I have lived in Juarez all my life, and am
familiar with the Rio Grande River, formerly known as the Rip §
Bravo. In 1852, and prior thereto, the river ran about where Second §
Street now is, at the point where El Paso Street crosses Second, and
on up diverging northeastward to just back of the present El Paso
County Court House, and between where the Court House is and the §
next block south on which the County Jail stands.  The river ran at
that place until 1862, when after an overtlow in that vear it settled §
into a channel south of where it ran prior to the flood of 1362, This §
last channel was about where Fifth street now is. The country lying §
south of the river prior to 1832, that is between where the river ran §
prior to 1862, and where it now runs, was all level and flat. It the §
land, was owned by various small farmers, and fruit raisers. 1t was f
cultivated in small orchards, vinevards and gardens. The homes §

~ were built of adobe. The overflow of 1362 washed the houses away §

and washed down the trees and destroved the vinevards and gardens.
There was some, but very little of the orchard trees and vines left §
after the water subsided, the trees and vines were all killed and were
afterwards used as wood: what few trees were left standing were
killed, and here and there they were lving on the ground where the §
water had washed them down. In 1863, there was another over
flow similar to the one in 1862. During the overflow in 1865 the
channel of the river changed still further south, and finally scttled
down where it now is, just south of Twelfth street of the City of El

Paso.

~PABLO TELLES, 70 vears old; ANTONTO PUERTAS, 70
vears old, and RAYMUNDO CAXNO, 65 vears of age, testified in §
regard to the changes in the river in substance as did Marcello Armijo §
and Jesus Telles.

MATIAS VELARDE, sworn for plaintiff, testified as follows:

My name is Matias Velarde. Was born in what is now kno#? §
as Juarez, Mexico, and have lived there all my life. I am 56 yvear
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old, and remember the floods of 1862 and 1865 in the Rio Grande
River. In 1862 the river ran about where Second street is in the
City of El Paso. When the flood of that year subsided it left the
channel of the river near Ketelsen & Degatua’s at corner of Fifth and
El Paso streets. The south or Mexican bank of the river was not

“overtlowed, the northern or Texas bank did overflow and the current

ran toward the Mexican bank and washed that bank away. There
were houses and farms on the south side of the river and these were
washed away. The banks would tumble in and be washed away.
There was nothing left between where the river settled in its new
channel at Fifth street and the old channel it had run in before. The
vines and trees were all washed away as well as the houses and noth-
ing left to mark the places where foriner habitations stood. After
the tlood in 1862 subsided, the people then rebuilt their houses that
had been washed away south of the new channel and opened up their
farms and gardens. In 1863, another flood came and lasted some
three or four months as the one in 1862 had done.  The country was
again covered with water and this time the river again changed its
channel and settled down somewhere about where it is now. There
has been no practical change in the channel of the river since after
the tlood of 1865 it settled in its present channel.  Both of the floods
of 1852 and 1865 resulted in the bank of the river on the Mexican
side being washed away and land being made on the northern or
American side. After the river changed from about where Second
street is to Fifth street, in 1862, the old channel formerly at Second
street was still there, but no water ran in it.

SILYERIO VARELY, sworn for plaintitf, testified:

I am 56 years of age and live in El Paso, Texas. 1 was born in
what is now called Juarez, Mexico, at one time called Paso del Norte.
I remember the Rio Grande River and the vears before its channel

- chanoed from about where the Opera House now is in El Paso, down

to Fifth street, just this side of Ketelsen & Degetaw’s place. 1 was
then living with my sisters and father on the same land upon which I
now live and which is on the opposite side of what is now called Stan-
ton street, but which was then known as the (famino Nacional or Na-
tional Road, to the property in controversy in this suit. My father
then awned the property upon which T am now living. After the
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flood of 1362, all we had being washed away, I left and went to Ney
Mexico to work. I returned several vears afterward and built op
the property we had formerly owned. This property upon which ]
reside had stones at the four corners to mark the corners. These
stones had been put there by my father to mark the corners of his
land.  When I returned I could only find one of the corner stones, it
was still there, the others were gone.

JOSE MARIA SIERR., sworn for plaintiff, testified :

I am 65 years of age, and have lived all my life in Juarez,
Mexico. I remember when the American troops were quartered in
Juarez, in 1846. 1 was then a small boy, but remember the circum-
stance well.  The soldiers took up their quarters in the public build-
ings where the public officers and documents were kept. A great
many of the public archives and documents were destroved by these
soldiers. They destroyed them in many ways. I saw piles of them
made just outside of the buildings and fire set to them, burning them
up.

As to changes in the river, this witness testified in substance as
did the witness Marcelo Armijo, Jesus Telles, Pablo Telles, Antonio
Puertas and Raymondo Cano.

DR. M. SAMANIEGO, sworn for the plaintiff, testified:

I have lived in Juarez, Mexico, off and on since 1852. Am a
practicing physician. Have held several offices in Mexico. Have
been Governor of the State of Chihuahua and Mayor of Juarez. 1
knew where the river ran prior to 1862. It ran about where Second
street now is in the City of El Paso, that is it ran along about the
course of Second street. In 1862 and in 1863, there were great over-
flows of the river, and in those years the channel changed. As stated,
prior to 1862, the river ran along about the course that Second street
now runs through the City of El Paso. After the flood of 1862 had
subsided, the channel then ran near Kettelsen & Degatau’s place,
about where Fifth street in the City of El Paso now is. The old
channel at Second street was dry, except some years during high
water or a rise in the river water would run through the old channel
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at Second street and also through the new channel at Fifth street. In
1865, the channel again changed. In this vear, after the overflow,
the river took up its channel, where it now runs, a little south of
Twelfth street in the City of El Paso. During these overflows, the
carrent of the river ran with greater force against the south or Mexi-
can bank of the river than against the north bank, and naturally
washed away the south bank. Before the rise of 1862 the land now
included between Second and Fifth streets in the City of El Paso lay
on the south or Mexican side of the river, and was oceupied and culti-
vated by small Mexican farmers, fruit raisers and gardeners. The
houses were of adobe, a kind of sun-dried mud brick. The farms,
gardens, trees and houses were all washed away, and the people com-
pelled by the high water to abandon their houses and property.  The
land between Fifth and Twelfth streets, or between Fifth and where
the river now runs, of course remained on the south or Mexican side
of the river until after the overflow of 1865, when this land was also
thrown into the north side of the river, by reason of a new channel
being made, as I have stated, just south of Twelfth street. The land
in controversy in this suit lies between Seventh and Twelfth streets,
and is consequently south of Fifth street and north of the present
channel of the river. T am familiar with the land and knew Julio
Provencio, who at one time owned it. He is now dead, he died in
Juarez. There were some large cottonwood trees that T remember
were standing on the south side of the river, up near the Santa Fe
Depot.  These trees are now, or were a few vears ago, still standing,
but are now on the north side of the river. There were other large
trees further down the river that were on the south side before these
floods, but are now on the north side. While all of the houses. crops,
vinevards, orchards and gardens were ruined and mostly swept away,
thev were not entirely gone. After the floods subsided here and
there could be found a fallen tree, grape vine roots, ete.. all were
killed, however, as the water remained over the land for threc or four
months.  Prior to about 1880, the Rio Grande River at this point
usually had water in it the vear around. Of late yvears it is dry the
greater part of the year. In former years there were rises in the
river quite every year, beginning about April or May, and the river
would remain high for two, three or four months. There were no
perceptible changes, however, in the channel, until 1862, and that
change and the one in 1865 are the only ones that occurred. Since
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1365, there has been practically no change in the channel. T ap
claiming land on this side of the river that I claim was prior to 1862
and 1863, on the south or Mexican side. About 1869, Captain W,
French, who was then City Marshal of El Paso, built a dam out into
the river above the City of El Paso. This dam did not extend across
the river, but only out into the river about half way across. The re-
sult of building this dam, or rather the dam itself, would, when the
river was up, throw the current towards the Mexican side, and it also
prevented the river from coming back into its old channel.

On cross examination, witness testified that he had been ex-
amined as a witness before the Boundary Commission in 1896, and
that he then testified as follows:

Cross Examination of Dr. Samaniego.

The following questions and answers were read to the witiess,
Dr. M. Samaniego, from page 65 of the report of proceedings of the
International Boundary Commission, and the witness admitted that
he had testified before the Commission as shown by said questionsz and
answers:

Questions propounded by the Mexican Commissioner.

Q. Either as an official or private party, do vou know anything
of the peculiarities and characteristics of the river ?

A. I know the habits and characteristics of the river. The
river is very changeable on account of the soil being movable.

Q. You say the river is changeable. During vour experience
on the river, have you noticed that these changes occurred during
the whole vear or only during the floods?

A, During the floods generally.

Q. Do you think that these changes were made by the violence
of the waters?

A. These changes occur along the curves of the river and by
eating of the sand, and are more perceptible when the waters recede.

Q. Were vou here in 1852% Can you tell then more about
where the river ran at that time?

A. T was here in 1852. My recollection from the distance we
had to go from this side to the river and on the other side to the
Court House, which was where the Ponce House stood, in block 17, I




should say that the river ran then about where the Windsor Hotel is
now.

Q. The Emory and Salazar survey showed the river to be lower
than where you have placed it. How do you explain it ¢

A. As I was young, 1 am not positive, because I did not pay
much attention to those things and what I know is more from con-
versation with old residents. Lately 1 have conversed with Antonio
Costa and before then with Jesus Serna, Father Ramon Ortiz and
Nepomuceno Varela, the latter two are dead.

Q. Since 1852 do you remember of any changes in the river ?
If so, please state them?

A. In the year 1862 there was a great flood. The river ex-
tended up to what was called Franklin, now El Paso. One could not
see ordinary objects from one bank of the river to the other. Of
course, during the flood it did some damage, but more when the river
receded, the enrrent all the time bearing more strongly towards the
Mexican side. In 1864 the current was so strong as to destroy the
jetties constructed on the Mexican side of the river, going behind
them and this prevented the river from going back to its old channel.

Q. Since the year 1564 have any remarkable changes occurred
in the river

A, Yes, sir; year by vear, but the most notable one was be-
tween 1865 and 1869, owing to the works constructed by Captain
French.

(). From 1362 to 1864 in which those large floods occurred
whicll you mentioned, when the waters receded, did you not observe

that the river occupied a different channel from the one it occupied
at a perceptible distance from the other?

A, Yes, sir; the changes were to such a degree that at times
during the night the river would wear away from fifty to a hundred
vards. There were instances in which people living in houses dis-
tant fifty yards from the bank, on one evening, had to fly in the morn-
ing from the place on account of the encroachments of the river, and
on many occasions they had not time to cut down their wheat or other
crops. Tt carried away forests without giving time to the people
to ent the trees down.

Q. Of the changes of the river that you have mentioned were
they all perceptible to the eye ?

A, Yes, sir.
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Q. And finally, is it not of your knowledge and a notorioug
fact that these changes do not take place in winter ¢

A. There are never changes during the winter.

Interrogated by the United States Commissioner.

Q. Have you not lost some lands yourselt by these changes in
the river ¢

A, Yes, sin

Q. ow many pieces of land have you lost ¢

A. I remember of having lost three pieces which were those
acquired from Diego Ortega, another from Jose Maria Sierra, another
from Juan Maria Ponce and others that are now partly on this side
and partly on the other side of the river.

Q. In what year did you lose the lands you got from Ortega !

A. In 1864

Q. In what year did you lose the lands you got from Sierrat

A. I lostit gradually up to 1872.

Q. In what year did you lose the piece you got from Ponce !

A.  They all stood along on the same line.

Q. Now, the other pieces that have been partly destroyed—in
what years were they partly destroyed ?

A, Principally from 1862 to 1864, and after that gradually up
to 1872, at which time I, being Jefe Politico, there were constructed
some defensive works.

Q. Referring to the testimony you have given regarding the lo-
cation of the river in 1852, is it your judgment now that the river
then ran where the Windsor Hotel now is?

A, Of course, I thought so from what I believed to be a faet,
but from looking at the map of Salazar I think T must be mistaken
in that idea.

Q. From 1852 did the river make any great changes tow ard
Mexico about the Windsor Hotel up to 1859 ¢

A. When I returned in 1839 the river was much nearer its
present Jocation.

Q. Can you esplain on the map about where it was in that lo-
cality in 18597

A. T think that the river ran about where the large irrigation
canal now existing runs.

Q. XNow, lower down the river about the Court House in Fl
Paso, do vou recollect where the river ran in that location in 18527
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A. Below the Court House the river passed by what was called
Fort Magoflin near the present dwelling of Mr. Magoffin.

Q. Referring to your testimony taken two years ago before
the civil authorities in Juarez, I find an answer to the fifth interroga-
tory which may explain your present testimony regarding the Wind-
sor Hotel.  In that answer you state that vou specially remeniber
that when vou left in 1844, the river ran where the Hotel Windsor is
now. May you not have confused this period, 1844 with 18527

The answer to interrogatory fifth, given by the witness to Senor
Felipe Seijas, District Judge, on September 4th, 1894, was then read
to the witness as follows:

“In his answer to interrogatory second, he states that he had re-
sided 33 years in this town, still he now =states that he lived here
from the yvear 1341 to 1844 That for the last mentioned vear up to
1859 he was absent; he being able to perceive on his return that the
river had changed its course notably in the space of time included
between the vears 1544+ and 1859, he specially remembers that when
he lett in the vear 1844 the river ran where the Iotel Windsor is now
sitnated, or more or less at a point on now El Paso street, equidistant
from its northern and southern extremities.  That the change took
place from the vear 1839 to the present tine in an abrupt manner,
especially in the vear 1865, That in regard to the changes of said
river from the vear 1844 to 1839, he can say nothing as to this
period of time becanse he was not here.”

Witness answered: “It is not strange that the river might have
run there more or less between 1544 and 18532, beecause the changes
were verv oradual and there were trees that prevented encroach-
ments,"”’

Q. TIn this answer, above referred to, vou alzo stated that vou
were absent from 1844 to 1839, Tlow do vou explain the dizerep-
ancy ?

A, Tt is probably due to it having been overlooked in taking
my former testimony, because I returned here in 1852 on a visit.

Tow lone did vou remain when vou returned on a visit m

From the month of March to November of that vear.
Q. Then eight months’ residence here during 1852 was all the
opportunity veon had to observe the then location of the river!?
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A.  Yes, sir; that was the only occasion to notice the then loes.
tion of the river.

Q. You have testified that Captain French constructed some
works on the United States side in 1868 to 1869. Do you know fo
what purpose he constructed those works

A. In order to throw the river over to this side, because i
threatened to destroy a diteh he had on the American side.

Q. Were not these works necessary to protect that ditch on the
American side ? ;

A. I do not believe so, because the ditch was not so near as to he t
in absolute danger.

Q. Was it not true that the breaking of the Mexican dam across
the river threw the current with force against the American side at g
point where these works were being constructed ?

A.  From the very beginning the current bore toward the Mexi-
can side. Captain French had built his defenses on a rocky place,
which was not susceptible of being encroached upon by the river.

Q. Then what was the object of building the defenses if the
river could not encroach upon it?

A, With a view of throwing the current more to the Mexican

side, because he had land on the other side which would be increased. B

Q. Then the works were to protect these lands, which he was
fearful of being destroyed, were they not ?

A, Yes, sir.  Also with bad intent, because he had no symw-
pathy toward Mexico, as publicly expressed by him at many times.

Q. Did you have any sympathy with Captain French regard-
ing the peril of loss of his lands?

A. They were not in danger.

Q. You have just testified that one object was to protect the
lands that he owned. '

A.  His main reason was to do harm to the Mexican bank.

Q. About the time that Captain French was constructing these
works on the American side, were you not construeting some works ot
the American side ?

A.  No, sir.

Q. Did you not dig a canal or make arrangements for digging
a canal to turn the river through the sand bars on the United States
side ?

A, TInthe first place, T was not in authority at that time, and in
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my private capacity I bought sone land from W. WV, Mills, and then,
with the consent of all the people there, a canal was dug on the United
States side with a view of diminishing the current from bearing on
the Mexican side, which was done with the full consent of the United
States authorities.

(. Who were these authorities ?

A. I do not remember, but the consent was notorious, as there
were more than 100 men at work on that canal.

Q. Who were these 100 men working on the canal, Mexicans or
Americans !

A, They consisted of men living on the Mexican side of the
river. Those most threatened by the current of the river on the
Mexican side.

Q. It 13 true that at that time there were few Americans liv-
ing on the United States side !

A, Very few.

Q. Was there any city organization on the United States side
at that time ¢

A. There were authorities ; a Cnstom Iouse existed then and a
District Court.

Q. You say that Captain French had bad intentions toward the
Mexican side because he was trving to throw the current against that
side.  ITad vou good intentions when vou were trying to throw the
current on the United States side ?

A, Our object was not to do damage to the United States side,

but to divert part of the current.

Q. I think that was vour object, but I think a similar gener-
osity would give the same eredit to Caprain French. Do you not
think so?

A, Captain French built his defenses at a place where they
Were unnecesssary, as far as protection went, and hurt this side.  Re-
ferring to the ditch, many of the inhabitants came there to see it dug
and make fun of the idea, becanse as they thought, our intention was
to throw the entire river to that side, whereas it was a canal that
would not have done anv harm, and constructed with a view of irriga-
tion. ) (

Q. Did not the Americans full [fill] up the canal soon after
You constructed it ?
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A No, sire It filled up by itself, because the water did ny
continue running through.

Q. You say you purchased the land on the American sig
through which you built this canal.  From whom did you purchas
it '

A From W. W, Mills,

Q. ITave you a recorded title to that land ?

A, The title exists and the snrvey of same made by Mr. Fouy
tain. I do not know if it was recorded or not. 3

Q. How much money did the construetion of this canal ecogt ]
and from what fund was it paid ¢

A It did not cost any money, for the people themselves tha
wanted their property protected did the work. ]

Q. About how many days’ labor, more or less, did it take to ]
construet this canal ?

A, About 100 men for nine days.

ESPERIDION PROVENCIO, sworn for plaintiff, testified:

I live in Juarez, Mexico. Have lived there all my life, and an
55 years old. Have held official positions in Junarez. I vewember
when the changes in the chaunel of the Rio Grande River occurred
There were two changes; one in 1862 and the other in 1865. In
1862, before the change, the river ran along and about the course of
what is now Second street of the City of El Paso, but during the over-
flow of the Rio Grande in 1862 the channel changed, and when the
waters subsided and the river took a fixed channel it was at about
where Fifth street now is, near the house known as Ketelsen & Dege
taus, which house is at the corner of Fifth and £l Paso streets and or
the south side of Fifth street. At one time after 18362 there were
two channels; one was the old channel, the one the river abandoned
in 1862, another one near Ketelsen & Degetaus. The water, how
ever, whenever it ran after 1862 in the old channel, wonld soon dry
out of that channel and continue to run in the channel made at Fifth
street. In 18635, during an overflow such as we had in 1862, the
river changed from the Fifth street channel to where it now runs, and
since this last change there has been practically no change. The
houses that stood on the overflowed land as well as the gardens, or
chards and vinevards, were all washed away during these two over
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flows I have mentioned. I remember after the tlood of 18362 going
over the ground and seeing a pear tree lying on the ground, but I can-
not say whether this tree fell into the river from the banks caving in
on the south or Mexican side and was washed over to this side or
whether it had stood whare it had fallen or was lving. During
these floods the banks of the Mexican side caved in badly alnost con-
tinually.

Upon cross examination the witness stated that he was a wimess
and testified before the Boundary Commission in 1896.

Thereupon counsel for defendant read from the proceedings the
following questions and answers of the witness as contained on page
51 of said proceedings:

Q. From 1832 to now have vou noticed any change in the

A. I have no recollection except from 1860 to this date.

Q. When was the first noticeable change in the river since

A, About the year 1864

Q. Did the change take place in 1864 or later on !

A. It began in 1864,

Q. TFrom 1868 to this date has the river made any noticeable
change ?

A.  Very slight changes have taken place since then.

Q. Explain how vou know what you have stated ?

A.  Because the violent changes of the river in 1864 caused con-
siderable alarm in the eity, and the people went to the banks of the
river and pulled down trees and tried to check the advance of the
waters. T was there sometimes to help and sometimes simply to ob-
serve. T helped to take out furniture from houses in danger and to
remove beams from houses, ete.

Q. When the change took place, was it slow or violent ?

A. 1 cannot appreciate what is meant by slow or violent, b1.1t
sometimes as much as fifty vards would be washed away at certain
points in a day.

Witness admitted that he had testified as above before the Boun-
dary Commission.

On page 58 of the Boundary Commission proceedings. Refer-
ring to some cottonwood trees near the Santa Fe depot claimed by
some of the witnesses in this case to have been prior to 1862 on the




south or Mexican side of the river, the following questions and gy
swers were read to the witness, and he admitted that he had so test.
fied :

Q. Do you remember ever having seen these trees where w,
are now standing, in years gone by ! ;

A. From 1862 to 1864 1 saw some trees here. 1 think thegy E
are the same trees, but I am not sure. '

Q. If these are the same trees vou saw in 1862 to 1864, whie §
bank of the river were they then on ¢

A. I think they were on the American side in 1862.

These further questions propounded by the American Commis E
sioner and answers of the witness thereto were read to him, and he ad- §
mitted that he had so testified:

Q. 1 think that you stated in your former testimony that there
had been no changes in the river from 1560 to 1864 ¢

A, Yes, sir.

Q. [low old were you in 1860 ¢

A, Thirteen yvears of age.

Q. Do vou think that you could remember well at that age that
there were no changes whatever in the succeeding vears to 1564/

A, No, there were no noticeable changes opposite the ferry.
; £ 1 :

Q. But there might have been some changes might there not?

. Probably there could be. .v

Q. Please deseribe the destruction of the bank on the Mexican §
side that you spoke of in yvour former testimony ? Describe the size &
of the piece of earth that vou saw fall into the river?

A, When the river made the alarming change it carried away
pleces of earth one vard, two yards, ete., constantly, in intervals of a
few minutes. At the time of these changes the people would be
standing on the banks watching a piece going down, and somebody
would eall “Took out! there is more going to fall!” and they would
have to jump back to keep from falling into the river.

Q. In this way the river tore off all the earth from the fields,
did it not?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. About how deep did it eut down in tearing it away ?

A.  As the river made the eurve, of course the volume of water
was then deeper. When the river was washing away the land, which
was composed of two kinds of earth, sand and, on top, clay, the water




— 83 —

would wash the sand easily and then the weight of the clay, being one
or two yards deep in places, would cause it to fall in. Under the
clay was all sand and I do not know how deep it was. The current
was very deep.

The Mexican Boundary Conunissioner then asked the following
question :

Q. This work of destruction took place only during the great
flood, did it not ¢

A, Yes, sir.

The United States Commissioner then asked the following ques-

tions :

Q. What became of these large picces of earth that fell into
the river ?

A, They would go under the water and disappear.

Q. What was going on during this time on the opposite or
American bank /

Ao The sand banks would advance thiz wav.

Q. Under the water !

Ao It was under water when the river was high. When the
river was low vou could see it.

Q. Did you ever, in any of the changes that vou have noticed
in the river after the flood had subsided, recognize anvthing on the
United States side that you had formerly seen on the Mexican side,
trees, houses, ete.

A, Yes, sir.  Cottonwood trees and one pear tree lodged in the
sand. T could observe these trees in the sand frequently. .\l killed.

Q. Referring to the pear tree.  Please desevibe about where
you saw it when standing on the Mexican side !

A, The pear tree was about where the smelter is.

Q. Please deseribe about where it lodged on the American side ?

A, Right on the sand bar that the river was leaving when it was
coming this way.

Q. Above or below where it was taken from?

A, Oh! far below.

Q. How far below?

A, As T do not know who owned the pear tree T cannot tell how
far it was,

Q. Tf vou saw it standing on the Mexican side before it was
forn awav and afterwards saw it deposited on the sand bar on the
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American side, you ought approximately to state the distance b. [
tween the place you had seen it standing and the place where yq,
afterwards saw it on the sand bar?

A. T did not say that I saw this pear tree standing, but suy
posed it belonged on the Mexican side because a great many trey
were taken from here. 3

Q. Then you had never recognized anything deposited on th
American side that vou had known on the Mexican side :

A, No, sir. ]

Q. MHave you ever known in anything of these high floods the :
river to overflow the Mexican bank ? :

A, In 1864, when the great change was observed, it did no|f

overflow the Mexican bank, nor from 1864 to the present time,

Q. Tlave vou ever known the current of the river to cut throug §
the Mexican bank a new channel with two distinet banks and leaving
the old bed with its banks undisturbed ¢

A, No, sir. In eight davs it will formn a new bed at some
point, and abandon the place where it had formerly been. :

Q. In vour previous testimony vou state that the river ha
made very slight changes from '68. Do vou know when the jetti |
known as the Garfias Jetties were built? '

A, Abont 1883. :

Q. This was eighteen vears after vou say there had ceased to be "
any noticeable change. For what purpose do vou suppose thoe$
works, costing $30,000.00, were constructed ?

A. The object of the works was that the people were tired o
constant work on the river and have had continuous fear that the tov ¥
might be washed away some time. When the railroad company mak§
a bridge it once was about to be washed away and they had to haul§
great deal of rock to place at the head of it on the Mexican side, avd
that is why the works were constructed.

Question by the Mexican Commissioner :

Do vou think that these works were constructed to protect againdf
the slow and gradual work of the river or against the floods?

A. They were made to protect the town from being carriél
away in the event of another flood like that of "64, because the cur™g
that the river had made was dangerous to the town.
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Question by U. S. Commissioner:

Will you please describe how the Mexican bank commenced in
the flood of '64 when the dam was destroyed ¢

A. I have already said that my recollection only dates from the
vear 1860, and that in 186+ owing to deviation which the river had
at the dam, beretofore referred to rmning entirely toward the Mexi-
can side, 1t sent the current toward the American side in an im-
petuous manner against a stone bank, which now exists a little below
said dam, and that the recussion of said shock returned the current
precipitously toward “El Chawmizal” (now Mejia), this being the
cause of the lands and houses being carried away, there having been
cases of many persons having been unable to save their personal prop-
erty, the river from that time on being subject to frequent changes
caused by the strong flows and always coming nearer and nearer the
city. :
Q. When the destruction of the Mexican bank was going on
here at Juarez, what was going on at Fort Bliss on the American side ¢

A, The same as oceurred here.

Q. The United States bank then was being destroved by the
current of the river in the same manner that the Mexican bank was
being destroved at Juarez, was it not

Ao It oceurred in consequence of the curve that it made here,
but in years after.

Q. Do you know of the Americans putting up any works there
to stop that destrnetion like the Mexicans did here at Juarez ?

A I do not remember.

Q. Which side lost the most land by the changes of the river,
the Mexiean side at Juarez, or the United States side at Fort Bliss?

A, T cannot exactly sav about the loss, but I think that Juarez
has Jost more land and wore valuable land than there.

Q. Tn all the vears since 1860, vou have frequently crossed the
river to and fro at this point, have vou not?

Ao Yes, sir: in front of here.

Q. Have vou ever, in any of vour crossings, found two inde-
pendent river beds with two independent river banks to each. one
carryving water and the other dry?

A, Sometimes when I crossed and the river was very high, then
When it would fall again it wounld leave a little arroyo on the Ameri-
can side,
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Q. What is between this arroyo on the American side and th
main channél on the Mexican side ?

A.  Sand only.

Q. (By Mexican Commissioner) :  Referring to the questig
of the United States Commissioner, about the two river beds, thi
way of forming two streams took place only by the violence of the §
great floods, did it not ?

A. When the river fell from the maximum height this we
observed.

J. E. TERRY, sworn for the plaintitl, testified:

My name is J. E. Terry, am 65 vears of age and have lived in
El Paso a number of vears. [ lived here before 1562, but in 1362
left and went to the war. .\t the time we left to go to the war the
river was very high, almost as far as yvou could see it was a =ca dof
water.  The river appeared to me to be a mile or more wide, and the
whole country was overflowed. As 1 remember it both banks were
overflowed. I know that as we left El Paso or Franklin, as it was

then called. we had to ride around near the foot hills to keep out of
the water. 1 know that before 1 left in 1862 that the viver had its

channel and was rumming along about the course that now runs
throngh the City of El Paso. When I returned from the war [
found the river running where it now is. I am a contractor and
builder, and have built many houses in the City of El Paso in the
past eight or ren vears.  Im exeavating for foumdations it is not hard
to tell where vou have struck the bed of the old river. T have gone
over the grountd often that was once the bed of the river. In many
places there are depressions where the channel once was, notably
above K1 Paso Street and just back of the County Court House and
between the Court House and jail, the place where the old cliannel
was can be easily traced out. T eame to EI Paso in 1856, and at
that time there had been a change in the channel of the river, the river
was then running about where it iz now. T was then told by the pee-
ple residing here that the viver had latelv changed, and an old chaw
nel was pointed out to me as being the channel prior to the chanve in
1856. This old channel was very evident and was abont where the
present Opera House in the City of El Paso is.  When the rise came
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in 1862 the river was then running about where it now is. I did not
return to El Paso after [ left in 1862 until 1882,

Plaintift then introduced Lueius Dills, a surveyor, and proved
by him: That he took the Chamizal Acequia ( Diteh) as his base
line; that he took an observation on the old church at Juarez, another
from the County Court House in El Paso, and another on the Post-
office Building in the City of El Paso for the purpose of triangula-

tion. That he then commenced at the southwest corner of the Marce-
lino Romero tract situated at the intersection of the north bank of the
(Chamizal Meequia (Diteh) and the east line of what was formerly
the Nariomal Road, from there he van north along the west Jine of the
Marcelino Romero tract same being the east line of the National
Road to the northwest corner of <aid tract, then taking the old original
deeds, many of them dating back as far as 1812, and none later than
1847 or 184X, hie surveved and plarred in cach tract of land on each
side of the National Road until he erossed the Rio Grande River and
reached the property in controversy in this <uit: that according to the
call: mm the old deeds the property in controversy in this ‘suit was
located north of the old road to the dam and cast of the National
Road, and that the southwest corner of said tract was at the intersee-
tion of said roads: that according to the field notes =aid property
should be at the intersection of what iz now Eleventh Street and Stan-
ton Strect, hounded on the south by Eleventh Street, and on the west
by Stunton Street; that he found alone Eleventh Street the traces of
an old road, alzo along Stanton Street: that he continned to plat. in
the varions deeds until hie found deeds which called to be bounded on
the north by the Rio Grande River: that giving the deeds the proper
distance called for. the north line of said deeds reached a point on
Second Street ; that the fact that cach of these deeds gives the distance
east and west, north and south, and calls for the adjoining tracts on
the east. west, north and south made the work much casier than ir
would otherwise have been: that the lands on the easr side of the pub-
lie road fell short abont 21 feet, and on the west side of the road abow
46 feot, but that this was not unusual, raking into consideration the
distance which he had to run and the further fact that in olden times
thex surveved with a chain, and that there is generally an excess in
the old survevs, and that when the land ix surveved with a steel tape
there is generally a shortage: that he found and located all the tracts
called for as being adjacent to the property in controversy in this
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suit; that said surveyor then exhibited a map or plat showing
lands that he had surveved, taking the field notes from the old originy)
deeds, and how he had platted them in on this map, the red lipg
showing the boundaries of different tracts surveved and platted b
him, which said map is hereby attached. Witness also stated that 0;1
another map he had platted a great many of the other surveys thy
were formerly on the south side of the Rio Grande River but are noy f
on the north side thereof, but that he did not deem it necessary to ex.
hibit or show any more of said surveys than what is shown on plat
The map presented by him and used in evidence which map and pla; E
is sent up for inspection by the Circuit Court of Appeals, by order of E
the Presiding Judge made under paragraph 4, rule XIV., of th
Tnited States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit.

MARCELINO ROMERO, sworn for plaintiff, testitied:

I am 55 vears of age, and have lived all my life in Juare, f
Mexico, at the same place where I now Jive. 1 was born there and §
the place was owned by my father long before. My place is on the §
south side of the Rio Grande River about 400 vards from the presen §
southern bank of the river. The road or street running by my prop
erty on the west side connects with what is called Stanton Street of
the City of El Paso, said street or road was formerly known as the f
National Road. In Juarez said street or road is now called Avenida ‘
Lerdo. Tt crosses what is known as the Chamizal \eequia or diteh
at the corner of my property. Said diteh or Acequia runs in front, §
south of my property and between my house and the house of Julio
Sisneros, whose house is on the south side of said Acequia, both of the §
houses are very old. About 20 vears ago I built my present houst f
on exactly the same spot where the house of my father had built stood. [
My house stands on the S. W. corner of my property. The Chamizl §
ditch or Acequia has been where it now is ever since I can remember,
and tradition has it that it has been there over three hundred years §
None of the old inhabitants of Juarez know anything of this Chamizl §
ditch ever being at any other place than where it is now.
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EXHIBIT «D.”

Argument of the Hon. ¥. Xavier Osorno, the Mexican Com-
missioner on the International (Water) Boundary Commission.
(See report of Proceedings of.said Commission, Vol. 1.)

KL Paso, Texas, July 13th, 1896.

The Joint Commission met at the office of the United States
Commissioner at 11 o’clock A. M., the meeting scheduled for the 11th
instant not having taken place.

Thereupon the Commissioners entered into the discussion of
Case No. 4, “El Chamizal;" and, as it treats of a reclamation pre-
sented in behalf of Mexico, the Mexican Commissioner was the first
to address, in order to demonstrate that the change operated by the
River Bravo since 1852 up to date onght not to alter—adhering to the
meaning and letter of the Treaty—the primary boundary line estab-
lished by Messrs. Salazar and Emory, becanse, as he believes, there
is not the least doubt that said change or rather changes were due to
the force of the current’s water, that are excessively violent in this
river at the time of floods, and not to the slow and gradual erosion
expressly Jaid down in the solemmn international compact existing be-
tween Mexico and the United States.  The American Cominissioner,
not conforming to the opinion held by the Mexican Commissioner, ad-
duced argmments to the contrary; and, thenee arose a long discussion
that was protracted for more than five hours and which, unfortu-
natelyv, was fruitless, notwithstanding the best endeavors of both Com-
missioners to arrive at a concurrence alike decorous and equitable to
the interests of the two nations they represent.  In view thereof both
Commissioners decided to submit cach one of them their report to
their respective Governments, not without first setting forth in com-
pendinm in this journal the arguments adduced by each in support

" of their opposed views. The cardinal arguments brought forward by

the Mexican Commissioner can be embodied in the following points:

Ist. That the Treatv in Article T imposes as a condition sine
qua non for the nonalteration of the boundary line through any
change of the River Bravo, provided that “such change be due to
slow and gradual erosion.” and that any other change—as a general




— 90 —

rule—ocecasioned by the force of the current shall not bring about ty,
alteration in any way of the boundary line, such as established by t
surveys of the International Boundary Commission of 1852, Re
lated as these two articles are with each other, every internation
question, as far as the case at issue is concerned, is embraced by th §
following syllogism :

Major: Auny change other than flow and gradual does not alie
the boundary line.

Minor: s a fact, the change of the river in the case denomi
nated “El Chamizal” was not slow and gradual, but on the contrary
violent and at periods of time of unequal intermissions.

Conclusion: IHence the change of the river on lands of “F
Chamizal” does not alter the boundary line marked in 1852.

The major proposition of that syllogism is evident in itself
without necessitating other proot: and if the Mexican Commissioner
should be able to show the proof of the minor one, the American Com
wmissioner cannot but submit to the force of logie, of the conclnsion.
Proof of the minor proposition. In orvder to demonstrate the truth
of same, it is proper first of all to agree as to what must be under-
stood by slow and gradual corrosion and he accepts at once, as good,
“the detinitions which Webster gives in English, of the following
words: “Corrosion—the action ov etfeet of corrosive agents, or the
process of corrosive change: as the rusting of iron is a variety of cor-
rosion.”  “Slow—uoving a short space in a relatively long time;
not swift; not guick in motion; not rapid; moderate; deliberate: as a
slow stream; a slow motion.”  And in the second aceeptance of
“slow™ there arve found these words that are snitable and adjnstable
to the case in point and must be borne in mind continuallv: “not hap-
pening in a short time: gradual: late.” *Gradual-—proceeding by
steps or degrees; advancing step by step, as in ascent or descent or
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from one state to another; regularly: progressive: slows as gradual
increase of knoiledge ; gradual ; late.”

Having defined what has to be nnderstood by slow and gradual
corrosion, the Mexican Commissioner affirnied that judeing frow the

0

depositions of all of the witnesses that were examined, from the in-
constant and mutable character of the River Bravo, at the region in
which the disputed land lies, and from the topographical configura-
tion which that same land preserves as vet, the change of the bed
which the Bravo occupied in 1852 to the one it now has, with a dif-
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ferent channel, is not, nor can it have been, slow and gradual as is
hereinafter demonstrated.

Testimonial proof: The declarations of all the witnesses are
upanimons upon these points, that the change or changes of the river
have always occurred at the time of great floods and due to the force
of the current; that such changes even when happening do not occur
vear by year, in a gradual manner; but capriciously and at inde-
terminate periods as for instance: the river did not change at all, or
changed imperceptibly in a period of twelve vears, say between 1852
and 1564; whereas from that last year on up to 1363 an epoch of
great and terrible inundations, there occurred the greatest change that
ever was operated in the bed of the river. Ilere follows how all the
witnesses testified 1n that regard :

Jesus Serna, the first one examined by the Joint Commission,
testified that “In 1854 there was a large flood but in 1864 there was a
noticeable change.  The change was violent and destroved trees, erops
and houses.”

The sceond one, Mr. Ynocente Ochoa, who, on account of his
wealth and honorableness is one of the most respectable persons of
Cludad Junarez, said: ~From 1558 to 1560 there were some small
changes : the largest change took place in 1564 when the dam was
destroyed ; the principal change was in 1564 but since then the
changes have been small.”  (Jowrnal of April 14th.)  ~The largest
change 1was riolent as [ have alveady stated and took place in 18647
(Procecdings of May 14th.)

The third witness, Mr. Espiridion Provencio. onc of the most
prominent real estate owners of Cindad Jnarez, and who has held tm-
portant public offices, affirmed: “The first noticeable change ot the
river occurred about the vear 18647 T cannot appreciate what is
meant by slow or violent, but sometimes as much as fifty yards would
be washed away at certain points ina day.”  (Journal of April 14th.)
“When the river made the alarming change it carried aiway picces
of earth one yard, two yards, and constantly in intervals of a few
minutes. .\t the time of these changes, the people would he standing
on the bank watching a piece going down, and somebody would call:
Look ent theve e move going to fall, and they would have to jump
back to keep from falling into the river.” “This work of destruetion
took place only during the great floods.” *In 1864, owing to a
deviation which the river had at the dam heretofore referred to. run-
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ning entirely towards the Mexican side, it sent the current towarg
the American side in an impetuous manner against a stone bay}
which now exists a little below said dam, and thus the recussion of
said shock returned the current precipitiously towards “El Chamiza]’
now Mejia, this being the cause of the lands and houses being carrig
away ; there have been cases of many persons having been unable ¢
save their personal property.” (Journal of April 20th.)

The fourth witness, Mr. Jose M. Flores, a well-known anq
reputable merchant and one of the oldest residents at El Paso and
Cindad Juarez, who, besides, was presented by the American Com
missioner, asserted “That between 1864 and 1368 the current came
with such violence that houses and fields were destroyed.” “If the
river changed between 1852 and 1864, it was not much, but imper
ceptibly.” “Some vears it had no effect—there was not enough water
to make a change—and some vears it would change considerably,
according to the stage of the water.” (Journal of April 16th.)

The fifth witness, who was presented also by the American Com-
missioner, was Mr. Samuel Schutz, formerly a merchant of import
ance and one of the oldest residents of El Paso, Texas. From his tes
timony it appears: It changed opposite the eity here, but more soa

little below here, until up to 1864. We had a big flood then and rise
in the river and it worked more on the Mexican side and nndermined
the banks more than in any previous years since I lived here in El
Paso.” “The currents that came between 1864 and 1868 were wifh
such violence that houses and fields were destroyved.” (Journal of
April 16th.)

AMr. Joseph Magoftin, a banker of E1 Paso, of the utmost respec
tability, where, with short absences, he has resided since 1844, was
the sixth witness. Ie was presented by the American Commissioner,
and asserted under oath: *The river was trving to work into Mexic
all the time; its natural course is that way. This damage to the
Mexican side of the river, caused by the washing away of the banks
from Ketelsen and Degetau’s down to opposite the smelter, caused the
river to turn and come direetly towards Old Fort Bliss, my father’s
place. We had there 20 wagons working from two to three months
at a time to try and keep the river from washing away the Post. The
banks on the south or Mexican side of the river were, as a rule, from
10 to 20 feet high down here at the Chamizal. They are all gon
now, or nearly so, and all this accretion to the United States has bee?
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by the washing away of the banks and the banks falling into the river.
Tt continued to wash away, as I said before, up to 1862, when I left
and went with the Southern army.”

~ The seventh and last witness, Dr. Mariano Samaniego, a most
honorable person and who has occupied high public positions in the
Republic of Mexico such as Congressman to the Union and Governor
of the State of Chihuahua, testified: I have noticed that the
changes occur during the floods generally. Tn 1362 there was a great
flood: the river extended up to what was called Franklin, now El
Paso. One could not see ordinary objects from one bank of the river
to the other. Of course during the floods it did some damage but
more when the river receded; the current all the time bearing nore
strongly towards the Mexican side. In 1864 the current was so
strong as to destroy the jetties constructed on the Mexiean side of the
river, going behind them and this prevented the viver from going back
to its old channel.” “The changes were to such a degree that at
times duwring the night the river would wear away from 50 to 100
yards.  There were instances in which people living in houses dis-
tant 50 yards from the banks, on one evening had to fly in the morn-
g from the place on account of the encroachments of the river and
on many occasions they had no time to cut down their wheat or other
crops. Tt carried away forests without giving time to the people to
cut the trees down.”” “There are never changes during the winter.”

(Journal of May 16th.)

CHARACTER OF THE RIVER.

It is almost needless to demonstrate that the River Bravo is incon-
stant and mutable—especially so at the region of the disputed land—
since it is a fact evident to evervbody. It is, however, proper to in-
sert here the authorized opinion of two American engineers who have
made a special study of the River Bravo: to wit: Major O. 1L
Ernst and Colonel Anson Mills himself. Sayvs the first named: At
the lowest stage the water ceases to flow and except in detached pools
the bed becomes entirelv dry. During the spring freshets the water
sometimes rises to a height of from 9 to 10 feet above the lowest level
and flows with a rapid current heavily charged with sediment. At such
times it possesses great building as well as destructive power. Be-
tween these two extremes there are, at different seasons all degrees of
volume and velocity. The size and character of the stream are ever
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varying and its requirements as to form and dimensions of bed vay
equally.” It is shifting from one position to another, altering IL
conrse, eroding one bank and building up the opposite one, formj
islands and bars, and then destroying them.”  (Journal of May T, )
Says the second: That while he was not ready to admit that i
never had made changes in the winter time, he had never known g
heard of it making changes during that season, for the reason thy

high waters were seldom, if ever, known during the winter 1onths”
(Journal of May 18th.)

Which above ufterances demonstrate that the changes of the rive
do never, nor can they, occur in winter, when the river “is entirely
dry except at detached pools.”

TOPOGRAPHICAL CONFIGURATION OF THE DISPUTED
LAND.

By the map (see page 98) made by the Mexican Engincer, Mr,
Zayas, and by the technical report of Lieutenant Colonel Corella,
Consulting Engineer of the International Boundary Commission, in
such parts as it refers to said map, it appears that the disputed land
(which lies between the bed of the River Bravo as it ran in 1552 and
the bed it now occupies) far from having been leveled in a uniform
manner throngh the soft and erosive action of the waters, asx would
have happened necessarily if the change of the river had been slow
and gradual. presents a difference in levels between the northern and
the extreme southern part of the land, the latter being higher than the
northern one (an inexplicable fact if the slow and gradual crosion
were to be adwitted).

Therefore, resuming all the above, it is seen that only by tortur
ing the grammatical sense of the words and by violating the most
rudimentary rules of dialectics there may be said, after hearing the
unaninions testimony of the witnesses, that a river which *destroy:
dams™: “tears off in a few minutes parcels of land of even more than
fifty yards”; “runs with such a riolence as to destroy houses and
fields” : “threatens to carry away Fort Bliss”; “that operates great
disruptions” ; “that from night to morning sweeps off houses and
everything else, without giving time to the dwellers to even save their
personal effects” : “that is only impetuous, terrible and destructive at
the time of floods” ; and, lastly, not only allays its fury but runs dry
and dies out during winter time and a part of spring. which is nearly
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half the year; that this river, a torrential stream, operates its changes
by slow and gradual erosion. Can the tremendous destructive power
of a river, called Bravo (fierce) by antonomasia, be said to be cor-
rosive as is the action of rust, by small degrees, upon iron until it
converts it slowly and imperceptibly into dust (as the rusting of
iron) ¢ How can it be affirmed that the destruction within a few
minutes of 50 and 100 yards of land is slow; or how can it be main-
tained that it is operated in a relatively long time (moving « short
space in a velatively long time)t  Who, unless blinded, can sustain
any longer that a river so inconstant as the Bravo does its work step
by step and degree by degree, in the manner as in the human mind is
augmented the wealth of knowledge (proceeding by steps or degrees;
reqularly. progressive, slow, as a gradual increase of knowledge)
And wonld not absurdity reach the ridiculous in pretending to set
down as regularly progressive the destructive action of a river that
requires more than twelve years to change its bed, that changes it in
four or five with terrific violence and is always dry half the vear?
Why, then, insist upon that point?  What has been stated is suflicient
and more than sufficient to demonstrate that the change of bed of the
River Dravo del Norte, from the place it oceupied in 1852 to the one
it now has, was not due to the slow and gradual corrosion mentioned
in Article T of the Treatv of 1834, and demonstrates the incontro-

vertible truth embodied in the minor proposition of the syllogism
formulated above, the conclusion of which is =0 legitimate as to make
it impossible of denial on the part of the Commissioner of the United
States.  All the debated question in the “Chamizal™ caze may be con-
fined within the narrow bounds of the svllegism which it iz proper to
reproduce in the way of conclusion.

Major proposition: Any change other than slow and gradual
does not alter the boundary line (Art. T of the Convention of Novem-
ber 12¢h, 1884).

Minor proposition: Since the change of the river in the case
denominated “El Chamizal” was not slow and gradual, but on the
contrary violent and at periods of time of unequal intermissions
(which has been fully demonstrated above).

Conclusion: Thence, the change of the river at the lands of
“El Chamizal” does not alter the boundary line marked in 1852 by
the International Boundary Commission.  (Art. IT of the Conven-
tion of 1884.)
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There are many other arguments based on the Roman laws, 5
perpetual and never failing source of distributive justice, as well a3
on the Law of Nations, that are observed in and governs the intern,.
tional relations between civilized people. But as such argument
would be only of value as an illustration in the international mate
at issue, well may they be suppressed for the sake of the brevity ang
conciseness with which the proceedings must be put down. Never.
theless, so as to define well the terms of this discussion, it is proper tg
quote here some definitions and legal precepts accepted in the juris
prudence of the United States itself: '

Aeeretion, in its vulgar acceptation according to Webster, means
in English “The act of increasing by natural growth ; the increase of
organic bodies by the natural accession of parts; organic growth.”
(Law)—"The adhering of property or something else, by wlich the
owner of one thing becomes possessed of a right to another ; generally
gain of land by the washing up of sand or soil from the sca or river,
or by a gradual recession of the water from the nsual water-mark.”

Avulsion, in its vulgar meaning is: A tearing asunder; a
forcible separvation. (Law)-—The sudden removal of lands or soil
from the estate of one man to that of another by an inundation ora
current or by a sudden change in the course of a river by which a part
of the estate of one man is cut off and joined to the estate of another
The property in the part thus separated, or cut oft continues in the
original owner.”—\\ebster.

LEGAL PART.

Here ave some legal doctrines recognized and quoted by the
Supreme Court of the United States in the case of “The State of
Nebraska, complainant, vs. the State of Iowa.” That casc is cer
tainly very different from the one now disputed and in whicl: if the
Supreme Court of the latter nation declared that ~Notwithstanding

the rapidity of the changes in the course of the channel and the wash-

ing from the one side and on to the other, the law of accrefion cow
trols the Missouri River, as elsewhere:; and that not only in respec
to the rights of individual landowners, but also in respect to the
boundary lines between States.” Tt was because the characieristic
of that river are quite different from the Bravo and to the point b
Mexican Commissioner calls very particular]ly the attention of Thf‘
Commissioner of the United States. In the first place, and this ¥

.
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very important, the Missouri does not remain entirely drv for nearlv
half a year, but on the contrary it “is a river of the first classd,
navigable by steamers of heavy tonnage™; the Missouri not only does
not dry as the Bravo, which is merely a torrential river in which the
slow and gradual process of aceretion is impossible, but it is a stream
changing according to the seasons of the year constantly corroding its
banks. It readily and rapidly vields to the force of a current and
the banks formed of it afford a very slight resistance to the changes
that the rapidly flowing river is constantly making. The current of
the Missouri River is very rapid, varying at different places and with
the time of year and the stage of the water from five to ten miles an
hour.”  Except in few cases the United States Supreme Court ad-
mits that the Missouri, in reference to aceretion, does not differ from
other rivers except in the velocity of its current; but otherwise the ac-
eretion proceeds always—mark always by imperceptible deposits of
particles of earth in suspension; something that does not happen in
the Bravo, that does not always carry water, and in which the changes
and damages not even occur always nor each year” (the only thing
which distinguishes this river from other streams, in the matter of
accrefion. is the rapidity of the change caused by the velocity of the
current, and this in itself,in the very nature of things, works no change
in the principle underlving the rule of law in respect thereto.) The
accretion whatever may be the fact in respect to the diminution 1s, in
the Missouri, always eradual and by the imperceptible deposits of
floating particles of earth. There is, except in such cases of avulsion
asmayv he noticed hereafter, in all matters of increase of bank, always
a mere eradual and (mperceptible process.”  What is to be under-
stood by imperceptible is shown to us by this quotation: “The test
as to what is gradual and impereceptible in the sense of the rule is,
that thongh the witnesses may see from time to time that progress.
has been made, they could not perceive it while the process was going
on”; which nndoﬁbted]}‘ has not happened in the changes of the
Bravo in the lands of “El Chamizal,” as the land, in sight of its in-
habitants, has disappeared with appalling violence nnder itself, and
from night to morning, they have proven that their houses and fields
have disappeared through the violence of the waters.

The complete difference of character between the Missouri about
the disputed region by the State of Nebraska against the State of
IOWa, and the River Bravo in the Chamizal lands elaimed by Mexico,
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against the United States, having been shown, it is proper to quot
right here the principles of International Law that are universally
recognized by all civilized nations and have in the present case indis.
putable value, having served as foundation to the most highly respec. |
able court such as the Supreme Court of the United States of Amerie
whose decisions, high and wise, may well serve of universal juris.
prudence and whose authority the United States Commissioner mug

respectfully acknowledge. ;
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EXHIBIT E.

Tae STaTE OF TExas,|
Cousty OoF EL Paso. j 58

I, W. J. Warder, American, single and of legal age, do solemnly
swear: That about the year 1895, I was applied to by a large num-
ber of citizens of Mexico, Mexicans, residing in and who had pre-
viously resided in the City of Juarez, formerly known as Paso del
Norte, Mexico, and requested by them to undertake to recover and to
assist them in an effort to recover for them certain lands claimed by
said Mexican citizens to have formerly belonged to them. It was
represented to me that these lands, while now lying on the northern
side of the Rio Grande River and apparently in the State of Texas,
and in the County and City of El Paso, had formerly lain on the
southern side of the Rio Grande in Mexico, and in what was known
as the district of El Chamizal and that through certain sudden
changes in the channel of the Rio Grande, by which said channel
abandoned an existing river bed and opened a new one far south of
where the original channel bed was, these lands had been thrown upon
the north side of the river. Upon investigation of the matter, I
found that the facts as to the original location of the lands, and the
conditions under which they had become transferred from the south-
ern to the northern side of the river had been truly and correctly
represented to me, I further learned that said lands were being
claiimed by American residents and non-residents of the City and
County of E1 Paso. The claim of the Americans was, in my opinion,
erroneously based upon the idea that the lands that had been cut off
from the Mexican territory by this change in the channel of the river,
had by such change been transferred to the American side of the river,
and consequently had by accretion been added to the American soil.
Believing the claims of these former owners of Mexican property to
be well founded in justice and right, and learning that in many in-
stances where the Mexicans had, after returning to their former prop-
erties and endeavoring to reassume possession thereof, they had been
met with the claims asserted by the American claimants and that the
title to their properties had been, by the action of the Rio Grande,
divested out of them, and vested in the American claimants, and that
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the attempts of the Mexican claimants to regain possession was apg
would be forcibly resisted, I accepted the propositions made to i,
and after entered upon the task of accomplishing by proper, legal ang
peaceful means the recovery of the property for those whom 1 consig.
ered to be rightfully and legally entitled thereto.

Among my first efforts was, in company with certain attorneys a
law, whom I interested conjointly in the matter, to present or cause t
be presented, after the question of boundary had been submitted t,
them by the two interested Governments to the International (\Vater)
Boundary Commission, such testimony as would establish unques
tionably the fact that the changes wrought in the channel of the Riy
Grande had been such as did not work a change in the Internationa]
Boundary, and that therefore the boundary remained where it had
been previously located by Messrs. Emory and Salazar, which location
was far north of the present channel of the Rio Grande. My efforts
in this behalf were finally met with the proposition that the Boundary
Commission was not the proper tribunal for the adjudication or settle-
ment of land titles, or conflicting claims to lands, and for this reason
the testimony of witnesses produced and to be produced before the
Commission (which testimony was offered for no other object than
that for which it will finally, in all probability have to be consid-
ered), was respectfully declined to be heard. That the result of the
investigation and deliberations of the International Boundary Com-
mission with regard to Case No. 4, known as El Chamizal, was 2
radical disagreement between the two Commissions is now a matter
of record and of history.

The forum of International Arbitration, to wit, the International
Boundary Commission, having been appealed to in vain, I then
sought to establish in the Courts of the United States of America the
rights of the former and dispossessed owners of the property thereto.
The result of this appeal to the Judicial Forum is likewise a record
and disclosed the fact, judicially determined, that the United States
and State of Texas and the County and City of El Paso are claimants,
with the private claimants, of the territory in dispute, and that the
Courts of the United States feel precluded from hearing testimony
that would tend to establish, or in fact establish, the fact that the
claim of the United States, Texas, and E]1 Paso County and City 1
dominion over the territory was erroneous. I refer to the case of w.
J. Warder vs. Mrs. Laura Loomis, that was tried in the Circuit Court
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of the United States of America at El Paso, appealed to the Cirecuit
Court of Appeals and then to the United States Supreme Court. In
many instances, too numerous here to mention, but of which sub-
staptial proof can be made, I have assisted the Mexican owners to
regain possession of their property, as I considered was my legal
right by placing tenants in actual possession thereof, where I have
found the property vacant and unoccupied by adverse claimants.
The American claimants in many instances have wrested possession
thus peaceiull; taken by threatened and actual physical force, and in
other instances have regained possession through such legal process as
was available without, and in advance of, a judicial determination of
the legal rights of the contending parties,

These facts are stated with full recognition of their import and
the responsibility therefor and the truthfulness thereof 1 stand ready
to verify.

I~ TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 27th
day of September, 1905.

W. J. Warper.

Tae Stare o Texas,|
Couxry or EL P.aso.g

Before me, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State
aforesaid, on this day personally appeared W. J. Warder, to me well
known to be the person whose name is subseribed to the foregoing
statement, and after having been duly sworn by me, in my presence
subscribed his name thereto and on his oath \tate« that the matters
and things therein contained arve true.

Grvey uxper MY HAND and official seal this 27th day of Sep-
tember, A. D. 1905.

H. F. BEx~ETT,
[Seal.] Notary Public in and for El Paso Co., Texas.

State oF Texas, l
- S8
Couxty oF Er Paso. |

I, Park W. Pitman, County Clerk of the County of El Paso,
State of Texas, and Clerk of the County Court of El Paso County
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(which is a Court of Record), do hereby certify that H. F. Bennett’
whose name is subscribed to the annexed instrument was, at the dag,
of same, and is now, a Notary Public in and for said El Paso County,
iy duly commissioned and qualified and authorized by law to adwiniste
oaths and take acknowledgements of instruments, and full faith apg
credit are due to all his official acts as such. .
! And T do further certify that I am well acquainted with the
b handwriting of such Notary, and verily believe that the signature g
¢ tached to the annexed instrument is his propep signature and i

genuine.
I~ wrrNEss WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

; and affixed the seal of the said County Court, at my offiee ;
in the County of El Paso, this 27th day of September, §
: A. D. 1905.
Parx W. Piraax,
County Clerk and Clevk of the Court of El
! Paso Co., Texas.
. By C. F. Excrisg,
k De puty.
Fees, $3.00,

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certi
fies that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Court of
this Distriet, and his the foregoing signature.

‘1. FE1 Paso, Texas, September 27, 1905.

(Signed) F. MarrEx,
Consul.

[Seal.] Mexican Consulate in El Paso, Texas.

i Tue Stare oF Texas,|

i Coryty or Er Paso.| .

I, Luis Jordan, married and of age, do solemnly swear: That §
T am a resident of the City of El Paso, Texas, and reside upon what
! . N I 4 ) . >
- is now ecalled Lot No. 9 in Lot 76, at the corner of Sixth and Kans#
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streets, in Campbell’s Addition to the City of El Paso. I have re-
sided at the same place for more than four years. I am in possession
of said property nnder a lease from an American named W. J. War-
der, who represented to me that he was the agent of certain Mexicans
who claimed to own said property by reason of having acquired the
same from Mexico many years ago, when that part of the City of El
Paso, Texas, where the property is situated, lay on the southern side
of the Rio Grande River, in the State of Chihuahua, Mexico, and
was known as the Chamizal District.

More than one attempt has been made to induce me to surrender
the possession of the property to Americans residing in El Paso and
who claim that the property belongs to them by reason of their having
purchased it from the Campbell Real Estate Company, or from per-
sons to whom the Campbell Real Estate Company had previously
sold. Within the past sixtv days I have been threatened with arrest
by these Americans, claiming the property under the Campbell Real
Estate Company title unless I moved off the property, or would ac-

knowledge said Americans as owners of said property and pay to them

rent therefor.
Ix rEsTIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand
this 26th day of September, A. D., 1905,

Ltrs Jorpax.

Tre Stare or Texas,| N
Covxty or ErL Paso.{

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally ap-
pears Luis Jordan, to me well known to be the person whose name is
subscribed to the foregoing statement and after being duly sworn by
me, and having said statement read over to him, in my presence, sub-
seribed his name thereto, and upon his oath stated to me that the mat-
ters and things in said statement contained are true.

* Ix TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
and affixed my official seal, this 26th day of September,
A. D., 1905.

H. F. BENYETT,
[Sea],] Notary Public in and for E1 Paso County, Texas.



Tue State oF TEXas,|
5. S.
Covxty oF EL Paiso.§

b I, Park W. Pitman, County Clerk of the County of k] Pas,
‘ State of Texas, and Clerk of the County Court of El Paso County
H (which is a Court of Record), do hereby certify that H. F. Bennet;
; whose name is subseribed to the annexed instrument was, at the date
P of same, and is now, a Notary Public in and for said El Paso County,

B duly commissioned and qualified, and authorized by law to administe
oaths and take acknowledgements of instruments, and full faith and
credit are due to all his official acts as such. -

And I do further certify that I am well acquainted with the
handwriting of said Notary, and verily believe that the signature at-
tached to the annexed instrument is his proper signaturve and i
genuine. .

I~ wriryEss wHEREOF, I have hereunto set myv hand
and aftixed the seal of the said County Court at my office in
the County of El Paso, this 26th day of September, A. D,
1905.
Parx W. Prrvaxw,
[Seal.] County Clerk and Clerk of the County Court
of El Paso County, Texas.

By C. F. Excrisn,
Deputy.

No. 36. Fees, $8.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certi
fies that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Court of
this Distriet, and his the foregoing signature.

El Paso, Texas, September 27, 1903.

(Signed) F. MaLLEN,

Consul.

[Seal.] Mexican Consulate in El Paso, Texas.




g HF g S

B2

— 1056 —

Tae STa1E OF TEXAs|
; s,
Covxty oF EL Paso.|

I, E. J. Hogan, American, single, and of age, do solemnly swear:
That I reside in the County and City of El Paso, Texas. I am ac-
quainted with Mr. W. J. Warder, who as the agent and representative
of Mexican claimants to certain lands lying on the northern side of
the present channel of the Rio Grande, has for several years past been
maintaining possession through tenants of certain lands lying near
the place where I am employed.  About three years ago said Warder
was in possession, by a certain tenant named Dolores Valdez, of a
small parcel of land near the City of El Paso and Iying within what
I am told were the original boundaries of a certain Chamizal Dis-
trict, which originally lay in Mexico. Said tenant had been in pos-
sesssion of the property, cultivating and using it for more than a year
and resided therecon with his family. Several days before the parties
Sorensen and Morgan, hercinafter mentioned, invaded the premises
of said W. J. Warder, 1 was informed that said Sorensen and MMor-
gan intended to take forcible possession of said parcel of land. A
few days after I heard that forcible possession would be taken of the
property. At an early hour in the morning and about the date when
I had been told an attempt would be made to take forcible possession
of the property, 1 saw an .\merican named Morgan, a member of the
firm of Sorensen and Morgan, contractors of ¥l Paso, Texas, go into
and on to said tract of land. Morgan came to the place in a wagon
and was armed with a gun, or at least carried a gun in the wagon. I
was told that he pulled down the Mexican tenant’s fence and went in.
T know that the firm of Sorensen & Morgan took possession of a part
of the property and have since remained and are still in the pos-
session thereof. The property T speak of is a small tract of land
lying about one mile southeasterly from the Court House of E1 Paso
County, in the City of El Paso.

I~ TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
at El Paso, Texas, this 26th day of September, 1905.

Epwarp J. Hocax.




Tue Stare oF TEXAs,|

Couxty oF EL PASO.S

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personal
appeared E. J. Togan, to me well known to be the person whose nan
is subseribed to the foregoing statement, and after being duly swoy
by me, and having said statement read over to him, in my presenc,
subscribed his name thereto, and upon his oath stated to me that the
matters and things in said statement contained are true.

Ix TEsTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
and affixed my official seal this 26th day of September, 4
D., 1905.

Vorxey M. Browr,
[Seal.] Notary Public in and for El Paso County, Texas,

THE STATE OF TEXAS,z )
Couxty or EL PAso.SbS'

I, George Paul, an American, married, and of legal age, rest
dent at El Paso, Texas, do solemnly swear that I am familiar with §
the foregoing affidavit and statement made by E. J. Hogan, and I ]
further state that from my own personal knowledge and from infor
mation gained from reliable and credible sources I know that the
facts stated by said E. J. Hogan are true.

Ix 1EsTivoNY WwHEREOF, T have hereunto set my hand
this 26th day of September, 1903, at El Paso, Texas.

GEeoree Patr.

Tue State oF Texas,|
County or EL PASO.S

.

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally ap
peared George Paul, to me well known to be the person whose name is
subsecribed to the following statement, and after being duly sworn by
me, and having said statement read over to him in my presence, sub
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seribed his name thereto, and upon his oath stated to me that the mat-
ters and things in said statement contained are true.

Ix TEsTIMONY wHEREOF, T have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal this 26th day of September, A.
D., 1905.

Vorxey M. Browy,
[Seal.] Notary Public, El Paso County, Texas.

TuE STATE OF TEXAS,z
Covsty oF Er Paso.§

Q
.

1, Dolores Valdez, married, and of legal age, resident at 11 Paso,
Texas, do solemnly swear that the statement foregoing made by
Hogan, and corroborated by George Paul, both of whom are to me
well known, is true. [ further swear that I am the Dolores Valdez
mentioned in said statement, and that on the morning referred to in
said statement, when the American, Morgan, entered into and upon
the tract of land mentioned by Ilogan, I was in possession of said land
as the tenant of said W. J. Warder. That 1 had been in possession
of said land as such tenant for more than one year; that Morgan en-
tered the premises without my consent and at an hour in the morning
before 1 or my family were awake. When I and my family awoke
that morning at the usual hour, and not later than seven o'clock A M.,
Morgan liad already entered upon the premises. That he came and
entered virtnally in the night time while my family and myself were
asleep. e necessarily had to and did take down the fence to get in,
as when | retired the night before the fence was up and when I got up
the next morning the fence was down and Morgan inside the en-
closure. Sorensen and Morgan are, I am told, a partnership firm of
contractors; I know that they are now and have been since the time
above referred to when Morgan entered inside my enclosure, in pos-
session of a part of the land leased to me by W. J. Warder, and of
which T had possession.

The above facts are those known to me, and as evidence thereof
I have hereunto set my hand this the 26th day of September, A. D.,
1903,

Dorores VaLDEZ.




Tur Stare oF Texss,|
Couxry oF Er Paso.|

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally g
peared Dolores Valdez, to me well known to be the person whose name
is subscribed to the foregoing statement, and after being duly swor
by me, and having said statement read over to him, in my presenc,
subseribed his name thereto, and upon his oath stated to me that the
matters and things in said statement contained are true.

Ix TEsTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set wy hand
and aflixed my official seal, thiz 26th day of September,
A. D., 1903. '

Vorxey M. Browx,
[Seal.] Notary Public, El Paso County, Texas.

Tus Srare or Texss,|
Couxrty or EL Paiso.|

I, Park W. Pitman, County Clerk of the County of El Pasp,
State of Texas, and Clerk of the County Court of El Paso County
(which is a Court of Record), do hereby certify that Volney M.
Brown, whose name is subseribed to the annexed affidavits of Hogan,
Paul and Valdez, was at the date of the same, and is now, a Notary
Public in and for said El Paso County, duly commissioned and
qualified, and authorized by law to administer oaths and take ac
knowledgements of instruments, and full faith and credit are due to
all his official acts as such.

And T do further certify that I am well acquainted with the

SS.

handwriting of such Notary, and verily believe that the signature at-
tached to the annexed affidavits and depositions is his proper signa
ture and is genuine.
Iy wirness wHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set muy hand
and affixed the seal of the said County Court at my office in
the County of El Paso, this 27th day of September, . D,
1905.
Parx W. Prrvax,
County Clery and Clerk of the County Court
of El Paso County, Texas.

By C. F. Excuisu,
Deputy.
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No. 29. Fees, $3.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certi-
fies that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Court of
this Distriet, and his the foregoing signature.

El Paso, Texas, September 27, 1905,

(s) F. Macrcey,

' Consul.
[Seal.] Mexican Consulate in El Paso, Texas.

Tue STATE OF TEXAS,( ]
Couxty oF EL Puiso.| i

I, Santiago Alvarado, married and of age. do solemnly swear:
That 1 reside in the City of El Paso, Texas, in El Paso County,
Texas, where I have resided for more than twenty vears. That L amn
familiar with that certain territory now called a part of the City of
El Paso, Texas, and known as Campbell's Addition to the City of Kl
Paso. From my own knowledge and from knowledge gained from
many and reliable sources, I am familiar with the former channel or
bed of the Rio Grande prior to the change that occurred therein in the
vears 1862 and 1865. And said river formerly ran more than three-
fourths () of a mile north of where its present channel now is. 1
reside at this time on a tract of land which formerly lay on the
southern side of the Rio Grande River in the distriet known as Kl
Chamizal, in the State of Chihuahua, Mexico.  Said tract of land is
now on the northern side of said Rio Grande River and is a part of
what is in the City of El Paso called Campbell’s Addition to said
city.  Said tract of land is a part of the property once owned by Juan
Barrio, who acquired the same from the Mexican Government and
was inherited and conveyed by the heirs of Juan Barrio to Mark
Howell and J. A. Gilmore, and by them conveyed to W. J. Warder.

A certain American corporation, known as and called C'ampbell's
Real Fstate Company, in or about the year 1882, took possession of
all that certain Mexican territory which by the changes in the chan-
nel of the Rio Grande had been thrown on the northern side of the
river, and caused the same to be surveved into blocks of land with
streets and allevs, ete. These blocks were also subdivided into smaller
tractz called lots. This territory after it was surveved into lots and
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blocks was then called Campbell’s Addition to the City of E] Pag,
and was claimed, sold and transferrerd by said Campbell’s Rea]
tate Company to various individuals. The property upon which |
side is covered by what is called by said Campbell’s Real Estg
Company lot eight (8) in block twenty-four (24) in said Camphelly
Addition.

In the year 1897, about the 15th day of July, T was residing ang
had resided for more than twelve (12) years on a parcel of land a part
of said original district of Kl Chamizal that is now ecalled, and hag
been sold and conveyed by said Campbell Real Estate Company g
block forty-eight (48) in said Campbell’s Addition to the City of
El Paso, Texas. [ at that time owned said property, having acquired
the same by deed from Julio Provencio, who acquired the same from
Francisco San Juan, who acquired it from Domingo Abalos, who ae-
quired same from Pablo Perez, who acquired it from the Mexican
Government, as appears by the original deeds now in the possession
of Mr. W. J. Warder, of El Paso, Texas.

Certain Americans living in the City of El Paso, and claiming
to have the better title to said block 48, for the reason that they had
purchased the same from the Campbell Real Estate Company, insti-
tuted a suit against me in the Texas courts to dispossess me of my
right and title to said property. T was then, as I have stated, living
on the property with my wife and children. After or at the time said
suit was instituted in the Texas courts against me, the Americans who
were claiming the lands under deeds from the Campbell Real Estate
Company, caused to be issued certain process, called in American law
a writ of sequestration, and being a writ of process commanding an
officer of the law to dispossess one unless certain bonds are given. I
was required to give a bond in the sum of twentyv-four hundred
($2,400.00) dollars or be turned out of my house, which T had built
upon the land, and be dispossessed of my property. I was not, and
am not a man of wealth, and consequently was unable to give the large
bond that was required of me in order to retain possession of my
property. I was forcibly dispossessed. At the time I was, with my
family, removed from the building during a severe rainstorm, one of
my children was ill. The weather was disagreeable and wet. With-
out avail I protested against being put out in the street with my fam-
ily at such a time and in the severe weather especially, as one of 1Y
children was very sick. As stated, my protest availed me nothing
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and as a result of the exposure to the severe weather, in its evndition,
my child shortly thereafter died, and its death is attributable to the
fact that 1 was compelled to expose it to the severe weather that ex-
isted at that time. I have also resided as owner and then as tenant
of W. J. Warder upon a tract of land called by the Campbell Real
Estate Company block twenty-five (25) in Campbell’s \ddition to the
City of El Paso.  This block twenty-five (23) is also a part of the
came tract of land that in 1885 was deeded to me by Julio Provencio,
and is the same title as that referred to above in which block forty-
eight ( 48) was and is involv ed. T am familiar with the bringing of a
suit by Mr. W. J. Warder in the United States Circuit Court at El
Paso, against Mrs. Laura Loomis and others, heirs of . M. Loomis,
Jeceased.  The object of the suit by Warder was to sccure an adjudi-
eation in the American Courts of the rights of those claiming under
the Mexican titles as opposed to the \merican titles.  The result of
the trial of the case was that the judge of the court refused to con-
sider the testimony offered by Warder to show that under the terms
of the treaties between Mexico and the United States and under the
truthful facts and evidence the changes in the chanmel of the Rio
Grande had not been such as worked a change in the original bound-
ary between the United States and Mexico. The judge of the court
claimed that the United States Government, through its Boundary
Commissioner, Anson Mills, was claiming the land. That the State
of Texas was exercising jurisdiction over, taxing it and enforcing the
payment of taxes thereon. That the City of El Pazo was alxo col-
lecting taxes on the property and exercising control over it. That
unless the changes in the channel of the viver had been such as to
change also the boundary, that is, if the changes in the channel had
not been slow and gradual, then those acts of the United States, State
and City Governments were unauthor ized and the propdrty was
Mexican territorv. That the court was bound to presume that the
United States, State and City Governments were acting advisedly
and rightfully in the premises, and therefore he, the judge, would
refuse to hear testimony that would tend to show that the acts of
these governments were w rrongful instead of rightful, and therefore
gave judgments against the Wlexicans and in favor of the American
title.

Ix TESTIMONY WHEKEOF, I have hereunto set my hand

this the 26th day of September, A. D., 1905, at El Paso,
Sax TIAGO ALVARADO.

Texas.

J— .




Tue Stare or Texas,|
Couxty or EL Paso.{

Before me, a Notary Public, in and for El Paso County » Texag,
on this day personally appeared Santiago Alvarado, to me well known
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing statement,
and after being duly sworn by me, and having said statement regq
over to him, in my presence, subscribed his name thereto, and upon
his oath stated to me that the matters and things in said statemep
contained are true.

I~ TESTIMONY WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand
~and affixed my official seal, this 26th day of September,
A. D., 1905.
H. F. BexxerT,
[Seal.] Notary Public in and for El Paso County, Texas.

Stare or Texss, |
County or Er Paso.{

I, Park W. Pitman, County Clerk of the County of El Paso,
State of Texas, and Clerk of the County Court of El Paso County

(which is a Court of Record) do hereby certify that H. ¥. Bennett,
whose name 1s subscribed to the annexed instrument, was, at the date
of same, and is now, a Notary Public in and for said El Paso County,
duly commissioned and qualified, and authorized by law to administer
oaths and to take acknowledgments of instruments, and full faith and
credit are due to all his official acts as such.

And T do further certify that I am well acquainted with the
handwriting of snch Notary, and verily believe that the signature at
tached to the annexed instrument is his proper signature and is
genuine.

Iy TEsTIMONY WHEREOF, T have hereunto set my hand
and affixed the seal of the said County Court at my office in
the County of El Paso, thls 26th day of September,
A. D. 1905.

Parx W. PirMman,
County Clerl: and Clerk of the County Court
of El Paso County, Texas.

By C. F. ExcurisH,
Deputy.
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No. 27. Fees, $8.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certi-
fies that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Court of
this District, and his the foregoing signature.

El Paso, Texas, September 27, 1903,

(s) F. Marrex,

Consul.
[Seal.] Mexican Consulate in El Paso, Texas.

Tue State oF TEXas,]
Couonty oF ErL Paso.{ ™

I, Sixto Alvarado, single, of age, and residing in the City of El
Paso, State of Texas, do solemnly swear: That about five (3) years
ago, to the best of my recollection, in the year 1900, I was living with
my brother, Santiago Alvarado, on that parcel of land which 1s called
and known in the City of El Paso as Block Twenty-five (23) in what
is called Campbell’s Addition to the City of El Paso. Said block of
land is situated in the southern part of what is now claimed to be the
City of El Paso, and about 200 yards north of the present channel of
the Rio Grande. In the year stated, 1900, my brother Santiago was
living with his family upon said block of Jand. My brother had pur-
chased in 1885 a certain tract of land from Julio Provencio. The
tract of land referred to is a part of that territory which originally
lay on the southern side of the Rio Grande in Mexico, in the distriet
known as El Chamizal, but which, on account of the changes in the
channel of said river, now lie on the northern side of said river, Block
twenty-five (25) in what is called Campbell’s Addition to the City of
El Paso is laid out on the site of the tract of land purchased, as I have
stated, by my brother Santiago in 1885 from Julio Provencio. My
brother built houses on the land and enclosed it with a fence 1mme-
diately after he purchased it from Provencio and in 1900 had been
in actual and peaceable possession for more than five (3) years.

On a certain day in said year 1900, an American named A. M.
Loomis, at a time when my brother Santiago was absent and I alone
In possession of the place, came with several laborers, whom he,
Loomis, instructed and ordered to tear down the fence around the
property and to destroy the improvements thereon. T protested

'
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against the high-handed and arbitrary manner in which Loomis Pro-
posed to take possession of the property by force. No heed, howeVer,
was paid to my protest, Loomis ordered his men to go ahead and teg,
down the fence, he, Loomis, stating at the time he would be respon-
sible in the premises. Being unable to resist the superior foree, T

was compelled through fear of personal violence and injury to permit
the forcible trespass on the property.

Loomis and his men then dig
tear down the fence and hauled away a part of the posts. For the
criminal acts of Loomis and his men in committing this trespass, they
were afterwards prosecuted before the Justice of the Peace in E]
Paso and a fine imposed against them.

I attended the trial and test
fied as a witness in the case.

At the time this forcible trespass was
committed, Loomis did not have or pretend to have or act under any
legal order or authority.

These are facts stated from my own knowledge and are true.

Iy resTivony wiereor, T have hereunto set muyv hand
this 26th day of September, A. D. 1905.

his
Sixto X Arvarapo.
mark.

IT've Stare or Texas,)
Covxty oF Er Paso.( P
Before me, a Notary Publie, in and for El Paso County. Texas,
on this day personally appeared Sixto Alvarado, to me well known
10 be the person whose name is subseribed to the foregoing insu'mn;‘ant
by making his mark, and after being duly sworn by me and having
said statement read over to him, in my presence subscribed his name
! thereto, and upon his oath stated to me that the matters and things n
said statement contained are true.

Ix tEsTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal this 26th day of September,
A.D. 1905.

H. F. BexxETT,
Notary Public in and for El Paso County, Tezas
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Stare oF Texas, |
s8
Couxty oF ErL Paso.{ ™

I, Park -W. Pitman, County Clerk of the County of El Paso,
State of Texas, and Clerk of the County Court of El Pass County
{which is a Court of Record), do hereby certify that H. F. Bennett,
whose name is subscribed to the annexed instrument, was, at the date
of same, and is now, a Notary Public in and for said El Paso County,
duly commisioned and qualified and authorized by law to administer
oaths and take acknowledgments of instruments, and full faith and
credit are due to all his official acts as such.

And I do further certify that I am well acquainted with the
handwriting of said Notary, and verily believe that the signature at-
tached to the annexed instrument is his proper signature and is
genuine.

Iy wiryess wHErREOF, [ have hereunto set wmy hand
and affixed the seal of the said County Court, at my oflice
in the County of El Paso, this 26th day of September,
A. D. 1905.

Parx W. Prranay,
[Seal.] County Clerk and Clerk of the County Court
of El Paso County. Texas.

By C. ¥. Excrisu,
Deputy.

No. 30. Fees, $8.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexigo, certl-
fies that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Jourt of
this Distriet, and his the foregoing signature.

El Paso, Texas, September 27, 1905.

(s) F. MarLLEN,
Consul.

[Seal.] Mexican Consulate in El Paso, Texas.
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Tur Stare or TExas,|
Couxty or Er Paso.{

1, Silverio Varela, do solemnly swear that I am a.married may
sixty-five (65) years of age, and reside with my wife, Concepeion
Chavez de Varela, upon what is called in the City of El Paso, in g
Paso County, Texas, Lots numbers sixteen (16) and seventeen (17),
in Block No. 103, in Campbell’s Addition to the City of El Pag,
Texas. That my father, who is now dead, was named Prudenci
Varela. That during the lifetime of my said father, he owned a cer.
tain piece of land, situated in the district known as “El Chamizal”
in the State of Chihuahua, Mexico, on the southern side of the Rio
Grande River and near the city now know as Juarez. Said land is
described in the document, which is a copy of the original now in my
possession, hereto attached and marked “Exhibit X.” At my father’s
death, this property descended to myself and my brother IFranciseo,
who is also dead. My father lived upon the land for many years,
cultivating it and living there with his family, consisting of my
mother, my brother Francisco and myself. The family lived upon
the land until the great floods or overflows of the Rio Grande, in and
about the years 1862 and 1865, when our houses, fences and crops
were destruved by the floods and we were compelled to leave for safety,
as were all those living in that part of the distriet of El Chamizal
that now lies on the northern side of the Rio Grande. Thereafter,
about the year 1889 my brother Francisco and I returned to our land
and took possession thereof and built houses thereon. As will be seen
by the boundaries of the land, as shown in the attached copy of my
father’s title, the area is about 4} English acres, and includes within
its boundaries the property and land in what is known as part of
Block 136, all of Block 116, and the greater portion of Block 103,
parts of Utah Street, Stanton Street and Third and Fourth Streets,
in what is ealled Campbell’s Addition to the City of E1 Paso, Texas,
as is shown by the plat of said property, and of said part of what i
called Campbell’s Addition to the City of El Paso, by which said
property has been covered and appropriated under the designation of
lots and blocks.
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At the time my mother and I returned to take possession of our
property, we found a portion of it then occupied and a part unoccu-
pied. We took possession of the unoccupied part and enclosed it.
We built a house on Lots 11 and 12 in Block 116, a part of the prop-
erty, and occupied the same for about eight or nine months, when we
were dispossessed by parties claiming to own the property under
American titles. We, my brother and I, then erected another house
on Lot thirteen (13) in said Block 116, and after living there three
or four years we were likewise dispossessed by parties claiming the
property under America. I then moved into the house which I now
occupy on Lots sixteen (16) and seventeen (17) in the block shown
on the plat as 103, and my brother moved into and occupied the house
now situated on Lot 14 in said Block 103.

About the year 1902, one Conklin, an \erican claiming to own
the property under American title, came to our place and entering our
enclosure began to make adobes. These acts resulted in a quarrel
between Conklin and myself and Conklin left. . Shortly thereafter a
carpenter came and began tearing down the fence we had built, and
claimed to be acting under instructions from Conklin. T protested
and the carpenter left. Shortly thereafter a man named Dix came
to the place and began tearing away our fences and building another.
My brother and I were away at the time. I came and found Dix
tearing down the fence and replacing it with another. Dix told me
Conklin had sent him to do this work and was payving him for it. I
left for the purpose of seeing an attorney and in the meantime, dur-
ing wy absence, my brother and his wife arrived on the scene and in
an altercation resulting in their protesting against Dix’s forceful in-
vasion of our possessions and destruction of our property, Dix made a
violent assault on both my brother and my brother’s wife, knocked
thein both down and beat them with a club. During this assault I re-
turned and was also assanlted by Dix. My brother, his wife and
myself were all painfully and seriously burt and wounded by Dix.
At the time these Americans were taking possession and attempting
to take possession of our property, we were informed that a certain
comipany, called Campbell’s Real Estate Company, and others who
had purchased parcels of property from said Campbell’s Real Estate
Company, were claiming the property under American titles—but
by our possession my brother and I sought to maintain our right and
title to the property as best we could. I am still in possession of that
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part above indicated and marked on the sketch as Lots 16 and 17,
Block 103, and my brother’s son, Francisco, lives on that part mmked
on the sketeh as Lot 14, Block 103. All of the vemainder of the
property has been taken from us, and efforts are now being made ¢
dispossess us of the two small pareels of which we still have possessioy,

Wiryess My maxp, this 25th day of September, A
D. 1905,

StLvERIO VARELA.

TuE STATE OF TF\&S,l
Cotrxty or EL P\\J()S

Before e, a Notary Public, in and for said State and County,
on this day personally appeared Silverio Varela, known to we to be
the person whose name is subseribed to the foregoing statement, and
he, after being duly sworn by me, and having said statement read over
to him, in my presence subseribed his name thereto and upon his
oath stated to me that the matters and things in said statemenr were
true.

Iy TEstIvoNY wiereoF, I have hereunto set my hand
and affixed my official seal this 25th day of September,
A DL 1905,

I F. Bexyerr,
[Seal. ] Notary Public in and for El Paso (ounty.

Stare oF Texas, | ss.
Couxty oF EL PASOS

I, Park W. Pitman. Counnty Clerk of the County of El Paso,
State of Texas, and Clerk of the County Court of Kl Paso County
(which is a Court of Record), do hereby certify that II. F. Dennett,
whose name is subseribed to the annexed statement, was, at the time
of same, and is now, a Notary Public in and for said El Paso (‘ounty,
duly commissioned and qualified and authorized by law to adninister
oaths and take acknowledgments of instruments, and full faith and

credit are due to all his official acts as such.

And I do further certify that I am well aequainted wirh the
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pandwriting of such Notary, and verily believe that the signature

attached to the annexed instrument is his proper signature and is
genuine.

Ix wrr~Ess wnereor, T have hereunto set my hand

and affixed the seal of said County Court, at my office in the

County of El Paso, this 26th day of September, A. D. 1905.

Parx W, Prraax,
County Clerk and Clerk of the County Court
of El Paso County, Texas.

By C. F. Excrisn,

Deputy.

No. 37, Fees, $8.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certi-
fies that Mr. C. F. English 1s Deputy Clerk of the County Court of
this Distriet, and his the foregoing signature.

Fl Paso, Texas, September 27, 1903.

() F. Marrey,

Consul.
[Seal.] Mexican Consunlate in El Paso, Texas.

TRANSLATION.

On the margin a scal which says: “Court of the Secoud In-
stance, District of Bravos.”

The Citizen Antonio Balderrama, Judge of the Second Instance
of this City, certifies:

That, in a bundle of loose papers corresponding to the year 1526
found in the archives of the Court in his charge, there exists a docw-
ment of which a copy is the following:

“Third Seal—Two reales: For the years 1826 and 1827,
Habilitated by the supreme Government of the free State of Chi-
huahua:

Constitutional Alcalde of Seeond Eleet: Prudencio Varela,
citizen of thisz village of EI Paso. conformably with my right and
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came with axes and were prepared to, and stated to me that they ip.
tended and had been sent to tear down the fences around the Property,
I explained the situation to them—that I was simply a tenant of the
property and endeavored to persuade them to see the parties undey
whom I was holding. They persisted in their threats to tear dowy
the fences and take possession of the property, without, Lowever,
making any actual attempt to do so, and were only dissnaded from
takmO possession thereof by foree by reason of the fact that T finally
told them that if they attempted to carry out their threats to take pos-
session, that it would result in serious personal conflict between them-
selves and myself. .\t the time I speak of, the Pablo Cordova mep-
tioned above was also present (he is since dead), but on aceount of the
menacing attitude of the two parties spoken of, the said Cordova was
frightened away and left me alone to protect the possession.
The above facts I state from my own knowledge.

Ix rEsTioNY wiereoF, I have hereunto set my hand
and seal, this 26th day of September, 1905.

Raxuxpo Caxo.

Tue State or Texas,|
Couxty oF Er Paso.f

Before me, a Notary Publie, in and for said County and State,
on this day personally appeared Ramundo Cano, to me known to be
the person whose name is subseribed to the foregoing statement, and
after being duly sworn by me and having said statement read over to
him, in my presence subscribed his name thereto, and upon his oath
stated to me that the matters and things in said statement contained

are true.

I\ TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my lLand
and affixed my official seal, tlus 26th day of Septewber,

A. D. 1905.

H. F. Bexx~erT,
[Seal.] Notary Public in and for El Paso County. Teras
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State oF Texas, |
Covxty oF ErL PASO.SSS.

I, Park W. Pitman, Comnty Clerk of the County of El Paso,
State of Texas, and Clerk of the County Cowrt of El Paso County
(which is a Court of Record), do hereby certify that H. I. Bennett,
whose name is subseribed to the annexed instrument, was, at the date
of same, and is now, a Notary Public in and for said El Paso County,
duly commissioned and qualified and authorized by law to administer
oaths and take acknowledgments of instruments, aud full faith and
credit are due to all his official acts as such.

And I do further certify that I am well acquainted with the
handwriting of such Notary, and verily believe that the signature
attached to the annexed instrument is his proper signature and is
genuine.

Ix wrrxess wiereor, [ have hereunto set my hand
and aflixed the zeal of the said County Court, at my office
in the County of El Paso, this 26th day of September,
A. D. 1905.

Parx W. Prryax,
[Seal. ] - County Clerk and Clerk of the County Court
of El Paso County, Texas.
By C. F. Excris,
Deputy.

No. 35. Fees, $8.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certifies
that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Court of this
District, and his the foregoing signature.

El Paso, Texas, September 27, 1905.

(s) F. MarrEy,

Consul.

[Seal.] Mexican Consul in El Paso, Texas.




— 124 —

Tre Stare or Texas,|
Couxry or Er Paso.{™"

I, Pedro Y. Gareia, citizen of Mexico, resident in the City of
Juarez, State of Chihuahuna, married and of age, do solemnly swear
that about the year 1866 I acquired from Don. Lorenzo del Barrio,
certain lands in the District of E1 Chamizal. That the railroad track
of the Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railroad Company now crosses
the lands referred to and which belonged to me and were, for many
years prior to the building of the said railroad track, in my possession
and in the possession of my tenants and were cultivated by me and by
my tenants. That about the year 1881, at the time and just before
said railroad was built across my said land, my tenants, Jose Acosta,
Francisco Acosta, Francisco Provencio and Marcelino Romero had
crops of wheat and other grain and orchards and vineyards growing
upon said land. That those then engaged in constructing said rail-
road forcefully entered upon said land, tearing down the fences and
houses and taking possession of the same over my objection and pro-
test, claiming that the land belonged to the United States and con-
structed and built the railroad track across and over said land, de-
stroying the crops, fruit trees, grape vines, houses, ete., as well as tak-
ing the land. That the erops were destroyed, the land taken posses-
sion of and appropriated and the railroad built over it without my
permission, and without the railroad company or any other company
or person ever having previously acquired a right of way over said
land from me, or anyone representing me, and without ever asking of
me or my representative permission to so build said railroad over my
said land, but built the same over my personal protest and objection
made as aforestated. That about the same time, or soon thereafter, the
remaining part of my said land was taken possession of by, as I was
credibly informed and believe, a certain Real Estate Company called
Campbell’s Real Estate Company, and by it sold out and disposed of
in parcels, which parcels are designated as and called lots and blocks
in Campbell’s Addition to the City of E1 Paso. Such possession and
disposition by said Campbell Real Estate Company of said propel‘!?y
was without title, right, or permission acquired from me, and said
land is now being held, claimed and used by persons who claim to have
purchased the same of said Campbell Real Estate Company, or from
persons to whom said Campbell Real Estate Company had previously
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sold. That I have mever sold, or in any manner parted with my
title to any of said property, except a small parcel, in area about one
acre, which I sold about three years ago to Ketelsen and Degetan, mer-
chants of Juarez, Mexico.

That part of the Chamizal District belonging to me and of which,
as hereinbefore stated, I at one time had peaceable possession and con-
trol, is now covered by a large part and area of the western and south-
western part, along the northern bank of the present channel of the
Rio Grande, of what is called Campbell’s Addition to the City of El
Paso, Texas, and which said Campbell’s Addition to the City of El
Paso is composed for the greater part, if not wholly, of land that orig-
inally, prior to the changes in the channel of the Rio Grande, which
resulted from the excessive and violent overflows of said river, lay on
the southern side of said river in the Republic of Mexico and in the
District known as El Chamizal, but which is now on the northern side
of said river, and which said Campbell’s Addition to the City of El
Paso is the land which pertained to the original distriet of El Chami-
zal, and-which has been taken possession and disposed of by said
Campbell’s Real Estate Company.

1 was forcibly dispossessed by the Campbell Real Estate Com-
pany. as hereinbefore stated, and by other persons. I protested re-
peatedly against the unceremonious and violent manner in which my
property was being taken from me, and which threatened personal vio-
lence to me in case of resistance, and I was compelled, through fear of
personal violence, to abandon the property to those who now hold it.
Against the action of the Railroad Company in taking possession of
my property, as above stated, I made such protest to the Mexican Gov-
ernment as appeared to me at the time available and proper, and as is
shown in the copy of said protest hereto attached and marked “Ex-
hibit X.”

The facts here stated are those of which I have knowledge, and
which facts can be unquestionably established by many witnesses, who
reside in the cities of Juarez, Mexico and El Paso, Texas.

Ix TEsTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
at El Paso, Texas, this the 26th day of September, A. D.,
1905.

Pepro Y. Garcra.
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Tue Stare or Texas,|

" ss.
CorxTy oF EL PASO.S

Before me, a Notary Public in and for El Paso County, Texas
on this day personally appeared Pedro Y. Garcia, to me known to bé
the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing statement, ang
after being duly sworn by me, and having said statement read over t,
him, in my presence, subscribed his name thereto, and upon his oath
stated that the matters and things in said statement contained were
true.

Ix resrivoxy wirereor, I have hereunto set my hand
and affixed my official seal, this 26th day of September,
A. D., 1905. '
I. F. Bexxerr,
[Seal.] Notary Public in and for EI Paso County. Texus.

State oF TEXas, z
Couxty or Ern Paso.y

I, Park W. Pitman, County Clerk of the County of El Paso,
State of Texas, and Clerk of the County Court of El Paso County
(which is a Court of Record), do hereby certify that H. ¥. Bennett,
whose name is subseribed to the annexed instrument, was, at the date
of same, and is now, a Notary Publie in and for said El Paso County,
duly commissioned and qualified and authorized by law to adniinister
oaths and take acknowledgements of instruments and full faith and

-credit are due to all his official acts as such.

And I do further certify that I am well acquainted with the
handwriting of such notary, and verily believe that the signature at-
tached to the annexed instrument is his proper signature and is
genuine,

I~y wirxess wHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
and affixed the seal of the said County Court, at my office in
the County of E] Paso this 26th day of September. A. D
1905.

Parx W. Prrumax,
County Clerk and Clerk of the County Court
of El Paso County, Texas.

By C. F. Excrisi,
Deputy.




No. 38.  Fees, $8.00,

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certi- |
fies that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the ¢ ounty Court of 1
this Distriet, and Lis the foregoing slgnature.

&

Kl Paso, Texas, September 27, 1905,

(s) F. MarLey, :
Consul. s
[Seal.]  Mexican Consul in Kl Paso, Texas.

TRANSLATION.

gy

On the margin a seal which savs: Jefatura Politica of the
Bravos District.

[n the Village of Paso del Norte, on the 13th day of June, 1581,
at a meeting of the Ayvuntamiento in special session, inder the Presi-
dency of the Citizen Jefe Politico Jacobo Ugarte, who convened the
same for the purpose of considering of a matter of great publie inter-

. 4
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est, and the same being made known and considering:  That it is not
clearly and finally determined that the limits or boundary between 5
Mexico and the United States <hould always be the natural course of ;
this Rio Brave, but that it is rather recognized as the one laid out by

oo

the respective Commissioners of hoth Governments where the river
then ran: That silence on the part of the Mexican anthorities might
occaziom great wrongs to the general interests of the Republic and to
those of this locality, very especially in view of the fact that it has
come to their knowledge that a Railway Company, named the Atehi-
son, Topeka and Santa Fe, which conneets with the Mexiean C‘entral
Railway, is constructing a border within the lands which the river
has left on that bank, thereby atracking not only the rights which
Mexico may have in case that the boundary is where this river had its
enrrent when the line was drawn, hut that also with the works and
firmness of this border and the others which it is said they will con-
struct for the formation of a bridge over the river, the course of its :
current may be changed toward this side without have the least hope ¥
of recov ering what is lost: That in the opinion of this Ayuntamiento, )
the work which is being formed is of those which the treaty specifies N
should be done by agreement between the two Governments, admitting ;
that the boundary line is the point where the river now runs: Con- .

TRt
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sidering also that the works alluded to are to serve as a dyke to vary
the natural current of the river, whereby the properties of the resi-
dents of this city are directly menaced, although they have been con.
stantly endeavoring to defend themselves upon the invasion of the
river, as is well known, and, finally, without the least doubt, that the
damage which would thereby be caused, as well to the interests of this
locality as to the general interests of the Republic by reason of the
above mentioned works is transcendental and they contribute greatly
to the advance of the river towards this city.

Wherefore, in the name of the City of Paso del Norte, and in
the representation of its rights, Ayuntamiento of this City protests, in
accordance with its rights, against all the works which max be com-
menced or constructed by said Company, its agents or others within
the land referred to, which affects or prejudices the right of our con-
stituants.

Let advice of this resolution be given to the Supreme Government
of the State and publication be made as necessary for the legal ef-
rects. Resolution concluded, this record was made and signed. We
certify. Jacobo Ugarte, Seal. Espiridion Provencio, Seal. Se-
bastian Vargas, Seal. Jose Maria Varela, Seal. Francisco Barron,
Secretary, Seal.

This is a copy of its original, Paso del Norte, June 13, 1381,

This is a copy of a document which exists in this office and
which is issued by the Ayvuntamiento to Pedro Y. Garecia for such
uses as he may see fit. C. Juarez, July 29, 1904.

The Jefe Politico.

S. MoNTEMAYOR. [Seal.]

JorGe JaMariLLo, Secretary, Seal.

Seal Avuntamiento C. Juarez, State of Chihuahua.
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EXHIBIT “F.”

A map hereto attached and marked “Exhibit F,” certified to by
an official surveyor of the City of Juarez, as having been correctly
made from the calls and monuments described in the ancient Mexican
deeds (see Art. 16, p. 16, sub-division entitled “New Correct Survey
and Map”), showing the location of the Rio Grande River as it existed
in 1827-1852, and the location of said river as it exists at the present
time, between which two locations lie the lands in controversy.
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EXHIBIT “G.”

A map presented herewith and marked “Exhibit G,” the said map
containing a plotting upon the said map of the City of El Paso as now
existing, of the channel of 1827-1852 and of the channel of 1862 and
of the present channel of 1905 of the Rio Grande River as claimed by
your petitioners (see Art. 40, p. 35, of this pamphlet), from which it
clearly appears that certain premises conveyed under warranty title
by General Anson Mills, the American Commissioner, and his brother,
the Honorable W. W. Mills, are included in the disputed portion of
the lands the title to which as between the American and Mexican

governments was intended to be litigated in El Chamizal Case No. 4
before the International (Water) Boundary Commission.
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EXHIBIT “H.”

Tue State oF Texss,|
Covxty oF EL Paso.(

Kx~xow arL Mex sy rnese Presexts, That Anson Mills, of the
Cnited States Army, temporarily of the County of El Paso, and State
aforesaid, for and in consideration of the sum of ($750) Seven Hun-
dred and Fifty Dollars, to me in hand paid by E. II. Alton, of El
Paso, Texas, and Jesse Haston, of Miles City, Montana, have granted,
sold and conveyed, and by these presents do grant, sell and convey
unto the said E. II. Alton and Jesse Haston, temporarily of the
County of El Paso and State of Texas, all that certain lot, piece or
parcel of land, Iving :itnate and being in the City of El Paso, County
of El Paso, and State of Texas, a part of Block No. (101) One Hun-
dred and One according to the Map of Campbell’s Addition to the City
of El Paso, and particularly described as follows:  DBeginning at a
point in the westerly live of Oregon street ninety feet sontherly from
the northeast corner of =aid block : thenee running southerly along the
line of said Orcgon street (33) Thirty-five feet; thence at right
angles westerly (120) One Hundred and Twenty feet to an alley;
thence at right angles northerly and parallel with =aid Oregon street
(35) Thirty-five feet; thenee at right angles easterly (120) One Hun-
dred and Twenty feet to Oregon strect, the point of beginning.
Said parcel of land having a front of (33) Thirtv-five feet on Ore-
gon street, running back between parallel lines (120) One Hun-
dred and Twenty feet and being the whole of lot (6) Six and (9) Nine
feet adjoining of lot (7) in said Block No. (101) One Hundred and
One.

To have and to hold the above described premises, together with
all and singular, the rights and appurtenances thereto in anvwise bo
longing unto the said E. TI. Alton and Jesse Haston, their heirs and
assiqn.: forever: and T do herebyv bind myself, my heirs, executors and
adnljinisrrators to warrant and forever defend, all and singular, the
said premises unto the said E. . Alton and Jesse Haston, their heirs
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and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming, or
to claim the same, or any part thereof.
Wrrress my hand at Fort Grant, Arizona, this Seven-
teenth day of May, A. D., 1887.

Axsox Mivts.

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

Tur TERRITORY OF ARIZONA, ]
Couxty oF GrAHAM. §

Before me, Miles L. Wood, Notary Public in and for Graham
County, Arizona Territory, on this day personally appeared Anson
Mills, Major Tenth Cavalry, known to me to be the person whose name
is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me
that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein
expressed.

Given under my hand and seal of office this 24th day of May,
A. D. 1887.

[L.S.] Mites L. Woon,
Notary Public.

Filed for record the 13th day of June, 1887, at 10.15 o'clock,
A. M., and recorded the 18th day of June, 1887, at 10.50 o'clock,
AL M.

E. P. Crarx, Clerk.
County Court, El Paso County, Tcxas.

By J. . Purrrs,
Deputy Clerk.

Certificate of true Copy:

Tre StatE oF TExAS,
Couxty oF Er Paso.{"

I, Park W. Pitman, Clerk of the County Court of El Paso
County, Texas, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and eor-
rect copy of the Record of W. D. dated May 17th, 1887, from Anson
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Mills to E. H. Alton and Jesse Haston as the same appears of record

in Deed Vol. IL at page 269 of the Deed Records of E1 Paso County,
Texas.

Given under my hand and the seal of said Court at office in El
Paso, this the 25th day of September, A. D., 1905,

Attest.

[Seal.]

Parx W. Prryax,

Clerk.

By C. F. Excrisn.
Deputy.

No. 34, Fees, $3.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certi-
fies that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Court of
this District, and his the foregoing signature.

El Paso, Texas, September 27, 1905.

F. Mavr1EN,
Consul.

[Seal.] Mexican Consulate in El Paso, Texas.
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EXHIBIT L™

Tue Stare or Texas,|
Cotxry or KL T.f/é..,v )

Kxow ALL MEx BY Tukse Presexts, That we, W. W. Mills, and
his wife Mary 1. Mills and J. P. Ilague, all of the City and County
of El Paso and State of Texas, for and in consideration of the sum of
three hundred and fifty dollars to us in hand paid by T. 11 Conklin
of the City and County of El Paso and State of Texas, the receipt
whereof is hereby acknowledged, have granted, bargained, sold, re-
leased, and conveved, and by these presents do grant, bargain, scll, re-
lease, convey and deliver vnto the said T. H. Conklin, his heirs and
assigns, all of that certain parcel or lot of Tand lving and being situate
in the City and County of El Paso, and State of Texas, deseribed as
follows, to wit:

95 x 120 feet of lot Eleven (11) in Block Eighty-eight (sn), be-
ginning at the northwesterly corner of said block eighty-cight (88)
the corner of El Paso and Fifth streets, as shown by the Map of Canp-
bell's Addition to the City of El Paso, thence in a sontherly dircetion
along the line of EI Paso street to a point twenty-five (25) feet dis
tant from said corner.

Thenee in an casterly divection at right angles with said El Paso
street, in a line parallel with the line of Fifth street, one hundred and
twenty feet to the twengy feet alley in <aid Dlock : thenee i a novtherly
direction along said alley line rwenty-five (25) feet to Fifth street.

Thenee in a westerly diveetion along the Tine of Fifth street, one
hundred and twenty feet to the place of beginning, the said Jot =0 de-
seribed having a front of twenty-five feet on Tl Paso street, and a huw
dred and twenty feet on Fifth street in said lot eleven (11) of said
Block Eightv-eight (88), and which <aid lot was drawn by us in the
partition of Jand between the Camphell Estate, the Estate of Watts,
J. F. Crosby, W. W. Williams, Alills and Tlague, and Wm. AL Pier-
son; together with all and singular, the rights, members, Leredita-
ments and appurtenances to the same belonging or in anywise incident
or appertaining.

To have and to hold all and singular the premises above wew

tioned unto the said T. T. Conklin, his lieivs and assigns forever: and
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we do hereby bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators

to warrant and forever defend, all and singular, the said premises unto
¥ - - al L . - . . : -

the said T. I Conklin, his heirs and assigns, aeainst everv person

whomsoever lawtully claiming or to claimi the same, or anv part
thereof. ‘
WIrxess ovr mavps, this T4th day of Mareh, A. D.,
1882.
W. WL Mires,
Mary H. Mirs,
J P. Hacue.

State or Texas,
Covxty or Er Paso.§

Before me, J. \. Buckler, a Notary Public in and for the County
and State aforesaid, on this day personally appearved W. W, Alills and
J. P. Hague, each known to me to be the persons whose nawes are sub-
seribed 10 the foregoing instrmment of writing, and ecach acknowl-
edged to me that he had executed the same for the purposes and con-
siderations therein expressed, and also on this day personaily appeared
before me Mary 11, Mills, known to me to be the other person, whose
nanie is subseribed to the foregoing instrument of writing, and hav-
ing been examined by me separately and apart from her said Trushand,
W. W, Mills, and having the same fullv explained to her, she, the said
Marv 11, Mills, acknowledged <uch instrument to be her act and
deed, and declared that she had willinglv <igned the same for the pur-
poses and consideration therein expressed. and that she did not wizh
to retract it.

Given under my hand and seal of oftice thix the 1dth day of
Mareh, 1882,

L8] J. A Brexrer,
Notary Public.

A true copy.
Filed for record March 22d, 1582, at 10 o'clock, P. M., re-
sorded Mareh 24, 1882, at 3 P. AL
AMazreL E. Frores,
Clerk.
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Certificate of true copy.

Tre State or TExas,|
Cousty oF EL Paso.{""

I, Park W. Pitman, Clerk of the County Court of El Paso
County, Texas, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a
true and correct copy of the Record of W. D. from W. W. Mills, Mary
H. Mills and J. P. Hague, to T. H. Conklin, as the same appears of
record in Book 2, of the Deed Records of El Paso County, Texas, on
pages 307, 308 and 309 thereof.

Given under my hand and the seal of said Court, at office in E]
Paso, Texas, this the 26th day of September, A. D., 1905.

Attest.

[L.S.]

Parx W. Prraax,
Clerk.

By C. F. Excrisy,
De puty.

No. 31. Fees, $8.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certifies
that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Court of this
Distriet, and his the foregoing signature.

El Paso, Texas, September 27, 1903.

F. MaLLEy,
Consul.

[Seal.] Mexican Consulate in El Paso, Texas.

DEED.

Tue State or TEXAS,|
SS.
Couvxrty oF ErL Paso.§

s, That I, W. W. Mills, of

the County of El Paso and State aforesaid, in consideration of the

Kxow ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENT

sum of Five Hundred ($300) Dollars, to me in hand paid by J. w.
Tays, have granted, sold and conveved and by these presents do grant,
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sell and convey unto the said J. W. Tays, of the County of El Paso
and State of Texas, an undivided one-half interest i;1 Fractional
Elock No. 1Seven‘c-y-one (71) in the City of El Paso and State of
exas, as delineated on the map of said Ci m as

“Campbell’s Addition” to said }Clt\t M Gt o as the map of

To ba‘*e and to hold the above deseribed premises, together with
all and singular, the rights and appurtenances thereto in anv wise be-
longing unto the said J. W. Tays, his heirs and assigns forex:er; and I
do hereby bind myself, my heirs, executors and administrators to
warrant and forever defend, all and singular, the said premises unto
the said J. W. Tays, his heirs and assigns, against every person
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or ;mv part
thereof. L

Wirxess my hand at E1 Paso, this 28th dav of Sep-
tember, A. D., 1882. )
W, W Mirrs.
Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of :

Tue Stare or Texas, |
Cotuxry or EL P.«xso.s

" Before me, J. A. Buckler, a Notary Public in and for El Paso
County, Texas, on this day personally appeared W. W. Mills, known
to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing in-
strimnent and acknowledged to me that he exceuted the same for the
purposes and consideration therein expressed.

Given under my hand and seal of office this 28th day of Sep-
tember, A. D., 1882.

[Seal.] J. A. BuckrLeg,
Notary Public.
Filed for record March 12, 1883, at 8 o'clock, A. M. Duly re-
corded March 22d, 1883, at 11 o'clock, AL

Maxter E. FLORES,
Clerk.

By A. SCHILDKNECHT,
Deputy.
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Certificate of true copy.

Tue State oF TExAs, |
Couxty or Er Paso.)™

I, Park W. Pitman, Clerk of the County Court of El Paso
County, Texas, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true
and correct copy of the Record of W. D. from W. W. Mills to J. W,
Tays, as the same appears of record in Book 4, of the Deed Records
of El Paso County, Texas, on pages 656 and 657 thereof.

Given under my hand and the seal of said Court, at office in E]
Paso, Texas, this the 26th day of September, A. D., 1905.

Attest.

[ Seal. ] Parx W. Piraay,
Clerle.

By C. F. Exeusi,
])(’[/l(f]/.

No. 33, Fees, $3.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certi-
fies that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Court of
this District, and his the foregoing signature.

El Paso, Texag, September 27, 1905,

F. Marrex.
Consul.

[Seal.] Alexican Consulate in El Paso, Texas.

WARRANTY DEED.

Tue Stare or Texas,|
5 SS.
Covxty oF ErL Paso.§

Kxow Art Mey sy tnese Presexrs, That T, W. W, Mills, Of:
the City of 1l Paso, and State aforesaid, for and in consideration of
One Thousand Dollars, the separate property of Louisa Ulman, to mé
in hand paid by said Louisa Ulman, have granted, sold and eom
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veyed, and by these presents do grant, sell and convey unto the said
Louisa Ulnan, of the City of San Francisco, State of California, all
the following lots and parcels of land described as follows, to wit:
Sitnated in the City and County of El Paso, and State of Texas, ac-
cording to Campbell Map of said City; the north twenty-five (25) feet
of lot ten (10), in Block Twenty ’0), also seventeen (17) by one
hundred and twenty (120) feet off north side of lot Seven (7), and
eighteen (18) feet by one hundred and twenty off the south side of
lot eight (8) in Block Forty-two (42), being thirty-five (35) feet
front on Chihuahua street ; also lot Thirteen (13), and south nine feet
of lot Fourteen (14), in Block Twentv-two (22) 1 also lot Sixteen and
south nine feet of lot Seventeen (17), in Block Thirty-seven (37);
alzo lot eight (&) and south nine feet of lot seven (7) in Block Forty-
one (41); also lot twenty (20) i Block Sixty-four (64): also lot
twelve and south nine (%) feet of lot thirteen of Block Forty-three
(43) 5 also lots five (5) to ten (10), inclusive, in Block Ninety (90),

and also lot eight (8) and sonth nine (%) feet of lot seven in Block
Fortv-one (41), and also the East one-half cach of lots 7 to 10, in
Blk. (19) ninetcen.

To have and to hold the above deseribed premizes as her separate
property, and not as the community property of herself and husband,
together with all and singular, the rightz and appurtenances thereto
in anvwise belonging unto her the said Louiza Ulman, her heirs and
assigns forever; and I do hereby bind myself, mx heirs, exeentors and
administrators to warrant and forever defend, all and singular, the
said premises unto the said Loniza Ulman, her heirs and assigns,
against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to c¢laim the
same, or any part thereof.

Wiryess my hand this 2d day of June, . D., 1887

W. Minos.

Tur Srate oF Tl‘mssl
Corxty or EL P: mos

Before me, W. E. Kneeland, a Notary Public, in and for El
Paso County, Texas, on this day personally appeared W. W. Mills,
well known to me to be the person whose name is subseribed to the
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foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the
same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed.
Given under my hand and seal of office this 2d day of June,
A. D., 1887. '
[L.S.] W. E. KxegLAND,
Notary Public, E1 Paso, Texas.

Filed June 2d, 1887, at 1.35 o’clock, P. M. Recorded August
13th, 1887.
E. P. Crark,
Clerk.
By M. J. Crark,
Deputy.

Certificate of true copy.

Tue State oF TExas,|
SS.
Couxty or ErL Paso.|

I, Park W. Pitman, Clerk of the County Court of El Paso
County, Texas, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true
and correct copy of the Record of W. D. from W. W. Mills to Louisa
Ulman, as the same appears of record in Book 12, of the Deed Records
of El Paso County, Texas, on pages 462 and 463 thereof.

Given under my hand and the seal of said Court, at office in El
Paso, Texas, this 26th day of September, A. D., 1905.

Attest,
[Seal.] Parx W. Prraax,
: Clerk.
By C. F. ExcurisH,
Deputy.

No. 28.  TFees, $8.00.

The undersigned, Consul of the United States of Mexico, certi-
fies that Mr. C. F. English is Deputy Clerk of the County Court of
this District, and his the foregoing signature.

E1 Paso, Texas, September 27, 1903.

F. MaLLEYN,
('onsul.

[Seal.] Mexican Consulate in El Paso, Texas.
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